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NOTICE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING
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To All Stockholders;

Please be advised that the annual meeting of the stockholders of AG FINANCH INC, will
be held on December 11, 2017 (Monday) at 12:00 nn at the Big Function Room, Manila Golf and

i

Country Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City.

The Agenda for the meeting shall be as follows:

Call to Order

Proof of Notice and Certification of Quorum

Approval of the Minules of the Previous Stockholders’ Meeting

Approval of the Management Report and Audited Financial Statements

Approval of the Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation to change

the name of the Corporation from AG Finance Inc, to Ferronoux Holdings Inc.

6, Ratification of Previous Resolution to Amend the Articles of Incorporation to change
the primary purpose from leasing and finance to that of a holding company.

7. Ratification of Management's Acts

Election of Directors

9. Approval of appointment of Reyes Tacandong and Co. as the Company’s external
audilor

1 Other Matters

11. Adjournment

SO Db

oo

For purposes of the meeting, stockholders of record as of 03 November 2017 are entitled
to receive notice and to vote at the said meeting, Registration for the meeting begins at 1:00 p.m.
For convenience in registering your attendance, please have available some form of identification,
such as, a driver’s license, voter's 11, TIN card, 555 card or passport.

If you will not be able to attend the meeting but would like to be represented thereat, you
must submit a duly signed and accomplished proxy form to the Office of the Corporate Secretary
al 4% Lloor Citi Center Bldg., 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City on or before 6:00 p.m. of 01
December 2017, Beneficial owners whose shares are lodged with PDTC or registered under the
name of a broker, bank or other [id uciary allowed by law, must likewise present a notarized
certification {rom the owner of record (i.e, the broker, bank, or other fiduciary) that he is the
beneficial owner, indicating thereon the number of shares, Corporate shareholders shall likewise
be required {o present a notarized Secretary’s Certificale altesting to the authority of its
representative Lo attend and vote al the stockholders’ meeting.



Validation of proxies shall be made on 06 December 2017 at the Office of the Corporate
Secretary at 4th Floor Citi Center Bldg., 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City.

Makati City, 09 November 2017

§

Hnid—

DIANE ]"rIADlgLYN C. CHING
Corporate Secretary

Attacinments to this Notice:
1. The Rationale and Explanation for each Agenda item requiring shareholders’ approval
2. The Definitive Information Statement, Management Report and 2016 Audited
Financial Statements



AGENDA
Details and Rationale

1. Call to Order

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr., will call the meeting
to order.

2. Proof of notice and certification of quorum

The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching, will certify that copies of this
Notice have been sent to all stockholders of record as of November 3, 2017 and whether
the attendees represented at the meeting hold a sufficient number of shares for quorum
to exist for the valid transaction of business,

3. Approval of minutes of previous stockholders’ meeting

Copies of the draft minutes will be distributed before the meeting and are available for
examination at the Company website www.agfinance.ph. The stockholders will be
requested to approve the drafl minutes,

The following is the proposed resolution:

"RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting of AG Finmice
Inc, held on 16 Decentber 2006 be, as 1t s hereby, approved.”

4. Management report and audited financial statements

The Chairman, Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr., will present the Management Report, the
Company's operational highlights and financial results and the audited financial
stalements for the vear ended December 31, 2016, The audited financial statements were
prepared by the Company’s external audilor, Reyes Tacandong & Co., approved by the
Company's Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. In compliance with regulatory
requirements, the audited financial statements have also been submitted to the Securities
and Exchange Commission and Bureau of Internal Revenue.

3. Approval of the Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation to change
the name of the Corporation from AG Finance Inc. to Ferronoux Holdings Inc.

On 07 April 2017, the Board of Directors approved the amendment of the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation to change its name from AG Finance Inc. to
Ferronowx Holdings Inc. subject to approval of the sharcholders.

6. Ratification of Previous Resolution to Amend the Articles of Incorporation to change
the primary purpose from leasing and finance to that of a holding company.



On 06 March 2015, the Board of Directors resolved to change the primary purpose of
the Carporation from leasing and finance to that of the holding company. Thereupon,
Article I of the Articles of Incorporation will be changed as follows:

To acquire by purchase, exchange, assignment, gift or otherwise, and to hold,
own, and use for investment or otherwise, and to sell, assign, transfer,
exchange, lease, lel, develop, mortgage, pledge, deal in and with and otherwise
operate, enjoy and dispose of, any and all properties of every kind and
description and whatever situated, as and to the extent permitted by law,
including, but not limited to, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, shares of
capital stock, or other securities and obligations, created, negotiated or 1ssued
by any corporation, association, or other entity, foreign or domestic and while
the owner, holder, or possessor, thereof, to exercise all the rights, powers, and
privileges of ownership or any other interest therein, including the right to
receive, collect and dispose of, any and all dividends, interest and income,
derived therefrom, and the right to vote on any proprietary or other interest,
on any shares of the capital stock and upon any bonds, debentures, or other
securities, having voting power, so owned or held, without however engaging
in the business of an investment company under the Investment Company Act
or a financing company or a broker of dealer in securities of stock.

The Sharcholders approved the amendment of the primary purpose last 17 April 2015,

Hence, the present action is for ratification of the previous resolution on the amendment
of the primary purpose.

7. Ratification of Management’s Acls

The acts, contracts, resolutions and deeds of the Board of Directors and management of the
Company were significant towards achieving the Company's performance and results, and
the stockholders will be requested to ratify the same. The following is the proposad

resolution:

“RESOLVED, that all acts, contracts, resolutions and actions, authorized and
errtered into by the Board of Divectors and Managesient of the Comgpany from the date
of the Iast annual stockholiders’ meeting up to the present be, as they are herely,
approved, ratified and confirmed.”

8. Election of Directors

It is proposed to re-elect the same members of the Board of Directors. The biographical
profiles of the Directors-Nominees are provided in the Information Statement that has
been sent together with copies of this Notice to all stockholders of record, The Director-
Nominees are the following:

Far Repular Director:

1.
2,

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
Arsenio K, Sebial, |r

3. Anthony M. Te
4. Hermogene T, Real



5. Remegio C. Dayandayan Jr.

Mominees for Independent Director
1. CGe Lin
2 Ally. Mathew John G. Almogino

11. Approval of appointment of Reyes Tacandong and Co. as the Company's external
auditor

Upon the favorable recommendation of the Company's Audit and Governance
Committee, the Company's external auditor, Reyes Tacandong & Co,, is proposed to be
reappointed for the current year 2017-2018. The audit partner-in-charge is currently Ms,
Belinda B. Fernando.

"RESOLVEL, that auditing firm Reyes Tacandong & Co. be, as it is fereby,
reappeinted as the Company's external auditor for the current year 2017-2018."
12. Other Matters

Stockholders may propose to discuss other issues and matters.

13, Adjournment

After all matlers in the agenda have been taken up, the Chairman shall entertain a motion
to adjourn the meeting.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-1S

Information Statement of J‘J
AG Finance Incorporated (the “Company,” or “AG Fm.{a
Pursuant to Section 20 of the Securities Regulation Cqu

1. Check the appropriate box:

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its
charter:

3. Country of incorporation:

4. SEC identification Number:

3. BIR Tax identification Code:

6. Address of principal office

7. Registrants Telephone Number:

8. Date, time and place of stockholders’
meeting:

9. Approximate date on which
Information Statement is first to be
sent or given to security holders:

10. Securities registered pursuant to
Section 8 and 12 of the Code or
Section 4 and 8 of the RSA Title of
each class:

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Quistanding as of Sept, 19, 2017;

Issued and Subscribed;

11. Are any registrants securities listed
in the Philippine Stock Exchange?

AG Finance Incorporated
Information Statement
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[ ] Preliminary qur.matl
[ X ] Definitive information

AG FINANCE, INCORFORATED

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
A200115151
219-045-668-000

16 Floor Citibank Center Bldg.,
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

(02) 833-0769
Date: December 11, 2017

Time: 12:00 nn

Place: Big Function Room Manila Golf &
Country Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park,
Makati City

MNovember 17, 2017

Common Shares Only

261 ,824,002 shares

261,824,002 shares
Yes

All common shares are listed in the
Philippine Stock Exchange
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AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
INFORMATION SHEET

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, Time & Place of Meeting of Security Holders
a. Date: December 11, 2017

Time: 12:00 nn
Place: Big Function Room Manila Golf & Country Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park,
Makati City
b. complete mailing address
of principal office: 16t Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas,
Malkati City

c. approximate date on which the Information
Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders: 17 November 2017

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

Item 2. Dissenters” Right of Appraisal

There are no matters to be acted upon at the meeting involving instances set forth in the
Corporation Code of the Philippines for which a stockholder may exercise the right of
appraisal.

Pursuant to Section 81 Title X, Appraisal Right of the Corporation Code of the Philippines,
any stockholder of a corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand payment of the
fair value of his shares in the following instances: (a) in case of any amendment to the articles
of incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any stockholder or
class of shares, or authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding
shares of any class, or extending or shortening the term of corporate existence; (b) in case of
sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all
of the corporate property and assets, and (c) in case of merger or consolidation.

Section 82 of the Corporation Code also provides that, this appraisal right may be exercised
by any stockholder who shall have voted against the proposed action, by making a written
demand on the corporation within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken
for payment of the fair value of his shares. Failure to make the demand within such period
shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed action is implemented or
affected, the corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate or
certificates of stock representing his shares, the value thereof as of the day prior to the date on
which the vote was taken, excluding ay appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such
corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the

stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the value of

the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of

whom shall be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the
2|Page
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two thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award
shall be paid by the corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made. No payment
shall be made to the dissenting stockholder unless the bank has unrestricted retained earnings
in its book to cover such payment. Upon payment by the Corporation of the agreed or
awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Carporation,

From the time of demand for payment of the fair value of a stockholder’s shares until either
the abandonment of the corporate action involved or the purchase of the said shares by the
corporation, all rights accruing to such shares, including voting and dividend right, shall be
suspended, except the right of such stockholder to receive payment of the fair value thereof:
Provided, that it the dissenting stockholder is not paid the value of his shares within 30 days
after the award , his voting right and dividend rights shall immediately be restored (Section
83 of the Corporation Code).

Within ten (10) days after demanding payment of his shares, a dissenting stockholder shall
submit the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares to the Corporation for notation
thereon that such shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shall, at the option of the
Corporation, terminate his appraisal right. (Section 86, Corporation Code). No demand for
payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the dissenting stockholder unless the Corporation
consents thereto (Section 84, Corporation Code).

The appraisal right shall be exercised in accordance with Title X of the Corporation Code,

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be acted upon

There is no substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holders or otherwise, of each of
the following persons in any matter to be acted upon, other than the election to office:

1. Each person who has been a director or officer of the registrant at any time since the
beginning of the last fiscal year:

2. Each nominee for election as a director of the registrant;

3. Each associate of any of the foregoing persons.

There is no director of the registrant who has informed the company in writing that he intends
to oppose any action to be taken by the registrant at the meeting and indicated the action
which he intends to oppose.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

Voting Securities

As of 30 October 2017, 261,824,002 Common shares are outstanding, and are entitled to be
represented and vote at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting. Each share is entitled to one vote.

3|Page
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Record Date

Only stockholders of record as of 03 November 2017 shall be entitled to notice and vote at the
meeting.

Action with Respect to the election of Directors

The election of the board of directors for the current fiscal year will be taken up and all
stockholders have the right to cumulate their votes in favor of their chosen nominees for
director in accordance with Section 24 of the Corporation Code. Section 24 provides that a
stockholder, may vote such number of shares registered in his name as of the record date for
as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number
of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as he shall see fit. The total number of votes cast by such stockholder should not
exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation
multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

Manner of Voting

The By-Laws of the Company provides that every stockholder shall be entitled to vote in
person or by proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the
matter in question. The votes for the election of directors, and, except upon demand by any
stockholder, the votes upon any question before the meeting, except with respect to the
procedural questions determined by the chairman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or
show of hands.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) Owners of more than 5% of voting securities as of 30 September 2015

Title of Name , address Name of Citizen- No. of | Percent
Class of record owner Beneficial ship Shares Held
and relationship Owner &
with Issuer Relationship
with Record
Owner

Common | -PCD Nominee RYM BUSINESS | Filipino 183,276,801 70%

Corporation! MANAGEMENT (Direct)
-Tower 1 - Ayala CORP.
Triangle |

' PCD Nominee Corporation, @ wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central Depository, Inc (*PCD")
is the registered owner of the shares in the books of the Company’s transfer agents in the Philippines.
The beneficial owners of such shares are PCD's participants, who hold the shares on behalf of their
clients, PCD is a private company organized by the major institutions actively participating in the
Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handling securities
transactions in the Philippines.

4| Page
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| City

MMakati Avenue
cor. Paseo de
Roxas Makati

-Registered
owner in the
books of stock
transfer agent

Other than the persons identified above, there are no beneficial owners of more than 5%
of the Company’s outstanding capital stock that are known to the Company.

Atty. Remegio Dayandayan Jr. as President of RYM shall represent and vote the shares
held by RYM in the Annual Stockholders” Meeting,

(2) Security Ownership of Management

The following is a summary of the aggregate shareholdings of the Company’s directors
and executive officers in the Company and the percentage of their shareholdings as of 30

September 2017
Title of | Name of Beneficial Amount and nature of |Citizenship |Percent of
Class Owner ownership (Indicate Class
record (“r”) and/or
beneficial (“b")

Common | Isidro C. Alcantara, 100-  “r" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Ir. -1,033487-  “b”
Chairman (indirect)

Common | Anthony M. Te 100 - “r” (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Vice Chairman -2,680,486- “b”

| (indirect)

Common | Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr. 100 - “r" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
President -0- “b" (indirect) 0.00%

Common | Remegio C. 1000 - “r* (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Dayandayan, |r. -0-  “b” (indirect) _ 0.00%

Common Hermogene H. Real -100- “r" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Asst. Corporate -0- “b” (indirect) 0.00%

Lo Secretary

Common | Manuel M. Lazaro* 100 - “r” (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Independent Director| -0-  ”b” (indirect) 0.00%

Common | Ge Lin (a.k.a Gery 100 - “r” (direct) Chinese 0.00%
Lam) -0-  "b” (indirect) 0.00%
Independent Director L

Common | Diane Madelyn C. -0- “r" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Ching -0- “b" (indirect) .

S|Page

At Finance Incorporated

Informeation Statement




Ci_‘:-rpufafb Secretary '
Compliance Officer
and Corporate
Information Officer
and System
Administrator for
FBE
Common | Rolando S. Santos -0- “1" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Treasurer -0- “b" (indirect) 0.00%
Common | ReubenF. Alcantara | -0- “v (direct) Filipino 0.00%
VP Marketing -0- “b” (indirect) 0.00%
Common | Leddie D. Gutierrez -0- “r" (direct) Filipino 0.00%
VP Internal Audit -0- “b" (indirect)
TOTAL 1,600 "r” 0.00%
3,713,973 “b" 0.00%

*resigned on 02 November 2017
(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There is no voting trust or similar arrangement executed among holders of five percent
(5%) or more of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company.

(4) Changes in Control

On June 25, 2015, the registrant disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange “PSE” and
Securities and Exchange Commission “SEC” that Mr. Tony O. King, and his family sold
to RYM Business Management Corporation 183,276,801 common shares or 70% of AG
Finance through a block sale on 25 June 2015 for PhP 280.00 Million or approximately PhP
1.5278 per share.

Below is the breakdown of AG Finance Inc. shares held by foreign and local
stockholders as of 31 August 2017;

Number Percentage
Foreign Shares [ 30,111 0.0115%
Local Shares 261,793,891 99.9885%
| Total Shares (Common) 261,824,002 | 100.00%

Item 5. Directors & Executive Officers

Except in cases where a higher vote is required under the Corporation Code, the approval of
any corporate action shall require the majority vote of all the stockholders present in the
meeting, if constituting a quorum.

Except in cases where voting by ballot is applicable, voting and counting shall be viva voce.
If by ballot, the counting shall be supervised by the external auditors and transfer agent of the
Company.

G|Page
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At all meeting of the stockholders, a stockholder may vote in person or by proxy. Unless
otherwise provided, the proxy shall be valid only for the meeting at which it has been
presented to the Secretary. All proxies must be in the hands of the Secretary at least ten (10)
days before the time set for the meeting. Such proxies filed with the Secretary may be revoked
by the stockholders either in an instrument in writing duly presented and recorded with the
Secretary prior to a scheduled meeting or by their personal presence at the meeting. (Section

7, By-Laws).

(1) Board of Directors and Executive Officers

The incumbent Directors, including independent directors and executive officers of the
Company are as follows:

Name Office Age | Citizenship | Term of No. of
Office years
served
Isidro C. Chairman 61 Filipino Since June | More than
Alcantara, Jr. 25,2015 | ayear
Anthony M. Te Vice Chairman 45 Filipino Since June | More than
25, 2015 a year
Arsenio K. Sebial, | President 59 Filipino Since June | More than
Jr. 25, 2015 a year
Ge Lin (a.k.a Gery | Independent Chinese Since June | More than
Lam) Director 25, 2015 a year
Manuel M. Independent 80 Filipino Since June | More than
Lazaro Director | 25, 2015 a vear
Remegio C. Director 35 Filipino Since Less than
Dayandayan December | a year
17, 2016
Hermogene H. Director 60 Filipino Since Less than
Real December | a year
e
Diane Madelyn C. | Corporate Secretary | 34 Filipino Since June | More than
Ching Compliance Officer 25, 2015 a year
and Corporate
Information Officer
and System
Administrator for
PSE
Rolando S. Santos | Treasurer 66 Filipino Since June | More than
N 25,2015 | a year
Reuben F. VP Marketing 34 Filipino Since Less than
Alcantara December
17, 2015
Leddie D. VP Internal Audit | 53 Filipino Since June | Less than
Gutierrez 25,2015 a year

* independent director — the Company has complied with the Guidelines set forth by SRC
Rule 38, as amended, regarding the Nomination and Election of Independent Director. The
Company’s By-Laws incorporate the procedures for the nomination and election of
independent director/s in accordance with the requirements of the said Rule.

AG Finance Incorporated
Informeation Statement
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following are the business experiences and positions held by the Directors and
Executive Officers for the past five (5) years:

Directors

Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara Jr. was elected Chairman of the board in June 2015. He is currently
the President and Director of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. and serves as the Vice Chairman
and Director for Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation. Mr. Alcantara is the
President of Financial Risk Resolutions Advisory, Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources
Investments Inc. He has been a Director of Benguet Corp. since November 2008. He served as
Senior Vice President and Head of Corporate & Institutional Banking at HSBC. He was elected
President and Chief Executive officer of Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCom) in
Manila Philippines from 2000 to 2004. In addition, he served as Executive Vice President of
the Corporate Banking Group of Equitable PCI Bank (EPCIB) from 1981 to 2000. He served as
Director of Bankers Association of the Philippines from 2000 to 2003. He also served at
Bancom Finance Corporation, PCI Bank, and Insular Bank of Asia and America (a Bank of
America affiliate) from 1975 to 1981. Mr. Alcantara Jr. is a Certified Public Accountant. He
obtained his BSc in Accounting and BS in Economics degrees from De La Salle University,
graduating magna cum laude. He also attended the Special Studies in International Banking
at the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

Mr. Anthony M. Te was elected Vice Chairman of the board in June 2015. He is currently
Chairman of the Board of Asian Appraisal Company, Inc., Amalgamated Project Management
Services, Inc., Asian Asset Insurance Brokerage Corp. and Professional Funding Services Inc.
He serves as Chairman and Chief Finance Officer of Mactel Corp., as Director and Treasurer
for Manila Standard Today Management, Inc. and as Director for Marcventures Mining and
Development Corporation. Mr. Te is a licensed soliciting official for Non-Life Insurance with
the Philippine Insurance Commission. He previously sat as director in the following
companies: Balabac Resources & Holdings Co,, Inc., Commonwealth Savings & Loans bank,
EBECOM Heoldings, Inc. Equitable PCI Bank, MRC Allied Industries, Inc., Oriental Petroleum
& Minerals Corp., PAL Holdings, Inc., PGA Cars, Inc., and Phoenix Energy Corp. He obtained
his Bachelor of Arts in Business Management from De La Salle University.

Mr. Arsenio K. Sebial Jr. was elected Director and President in June 2015. He is the President
and CEO of Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation (MMDC). He graduated
from Mapua Institute of Technology with a degree in Mining Engineering and was the
previous president of the Philippine Mining Engineer’s Society. He holds 40 years of mining
experience, the longest was with Benguet Corporation where he rose to Division Manager for
Mining and Engineering and worked in the highly successful Benguet ~Dizon Copper Mines.

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr. was elected as Director in December 2015, He currently
sits as Director and President of RYM Business Management Corporation and the Philippine
Manila Standard Publishing, Inc. He was previously an associate of Dum lao Moraleda
Antonano and Tuvera Law Offices from February 2008 to March 2009. Atty. Dayandayan
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Arts major in Political Science from the University of San
Carlos in 2001 and Bachelor of Laws from San Beda College-Mendiola in 2007. He was
admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2008.

Atty. Hermogene H. Real was elected director in December 16, 2016 effective on December
23, 2017 as soon as she obtained a qualifying share. She serves as Director of Philippine
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Collectivemedia Corporation (2008 to present), as Corporate Secretary of Benguet
Corporation (2000 to present) and Universal Re Condominium Corporation (1997 to 2009,
2010 to present), as Assistant Corporate Secretary of Dona Remedios Trinidad Romualdez
Medical Foundation, Inc. (1996 to present), Benguetcorp Nickel Mines, Inc. (2009 to present).
She is a lawyer in D.5. Tantuico and Associates (1998 to present). She previously held the
following positions: Chairman of the Board and President of Philippine Collectivemedia
Corporation (2008 to 2010); Corporate Secretary of Trans Middle East Phils. Equities, Inc. (1996
to 2006); and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Equitable PCI Bank, Ine. (2005-2006).

Atty. Manuel M. Lazaro was elected Independent Director in June 2015, He currently sits as
Director for Philippine Airlines, Inc., (PAL), The Manila Hotel Corporation and Manila Golf
& Country Club. He is also the Chairman & CEO of Philippine Constitution Association
(PHILCONSA) and served as its President and Governor for Four Terms from the year 1991
to 2011. He sat as Director for PHILIA Development Center, Inc. and is a member of the
Board of Advisors of Ateneo Law School and Chairman of Aquila Legis Alumni Foundation,
Inc.

Mr. Ge Lin (a.k.a Gery Lam) was elected Independent Director in June 2015. He serves as
Director of Zhejiang Long Kai and LianYunGang and as Director and General Manager for
HYSS5 HOLDINGS. Mr. Lam sat as Executive Director Philippine ZhaoHeng Mining Co., Ltd.
from the year 2005 to 2007.

Key Officers

Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching was appointed as Corporate Secretary in June 2015. She serves
as Director and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. , as General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation as
Asst. Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer and Corporate Information Officer of
Marcventures Holdings, Inc. and as Corporate Secretary of Bright Kindle Resources &
Investments, Inc. She obtained her Bachelor of Laws from San Beda College-Mendiola in 2009
and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2010,

Mr. Rolando 5. Santos was appointed Treasurer in June 2015, He concurrently holds the
position of Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration of Marcventures Holdings,
Inc. He also serves as Treasurer for Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation,
Bright Kindle Resources and Investments, Inc., and Bright Green Resources Corp. He was
previously the Branch head/Cluster head of Branches for Banco De Oro from 2001 to 2013,
Bank of Commerce from 1984 to 2001, Producers Bank of the Philippines from 1981 to 1984,
and Far East Bank from 1972 and 1981. He obtained his degree in BS Business Administration
from the University of the East.

Mr. Leddie D. Gutierrez was appointed as VP Internal Audit in June 2015. He is a Certified
Public Accountant and has held key positions in internal audit, corporate services and
compliance and control since 1995, Mr. Gutierrez is currently the Vice President for Audit and
Risk Management of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. (MMDC). He served as
Division Head (Assistant Vice President) of Strategic Support Division under Institutional
Banking Sector of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, where, since joining in November
2011 as Compliance and Control Officer (Senior Manager), he oversaw 1BS’s compliance to
policies, procedures and regulations set by the Bank, BSP and regulatory agencies and led in
systems and process improvements for the Group. From April 2005 to October 2011, Mr.
Gutierrez served as Head of Internal Audit of PLDT Global Corporation (PGC), a subsidiary
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and international marketing firm of PLDT Co. In this role, he carried out operational,
information technology, financial, network and compliance audits of PGC. Mr. Gutierrez is a
graduate of the Universily of the East.

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara was appointed VP for Marketing in December 2015, He currently
sits as the Vice President for Marketing, Business Development, and Strategic Planning and
Investor Relations Officer of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. Mr. Alcantara also serves as the
Vice President for Marketing of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. He previously
served as Relationship and Credit Officer for Security Bank and has had stints in Corporate
Banking in Bank of Commerce and Maybank Philippines.

Nomination Committee and Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The Nomination Committee is composed of Mr. Anthony M. Te, Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
And Mr. Ge Lin.

The Nominations Committee has screened the following nominees for election on 11
December 2017. The Nominations Committee determined that the candidates possess all the

qualifications and none the disqualifications as director or independent director.

Regular Directors:

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
Anthony M. Te

Rolando 5. Santos
Remegio C. Dayandayan
Atty. Hermogene H. Real

Independent Directors:

Atty. Mathew John G. Almogino
Mr. Ge Lin

Mr. Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr, and Atty. Manuel M. Lazaro will no longer stand for re-
election. Mr. Sebial advised the Company of his intention to retire while Atty. Lazaro
resigned on 02 November 2017 to concentrate on other matters.

Atty. Mathew John G. Almogino is a member of the Philippine Bar.

(2) Independent Directors
The following are the nominees for independent directors of the Company:

1. Ge Lin (a.k.a Gery Lam)
2. Atty. Matthew-John G. Almogino

Mr. Lin possessed all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications as independent
director since his election in the year 2015. Atty. Almogino possessed all the qualifications and
none of the disqualification as independent director. They are not employees of the Company
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and do not have relationship with the Company which would interfere with the exercise of
independent judgment in carrying out the responsibility of a director.

Both were nominated by Mr. Isidro Alcantara, Jr. The nominator is not related to the persons
he has nominated for independent director.

The term of office of all directors, including independent directors shall be one (1) vear until
their successors are duly elected and qualified.

The Certification of Qualification for the Independent Director of Mr. Ge Lin and Atty.
Almogino are attached herewith.

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No4 Series of 2017, both Independent
Directors (ID) have not exceeded the maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years.
Furthermore, the Company understands that after a term of (9) years, the independent
director shall be perpetually barred from re-election as such in the same company, but may
continue to qualify as a non-independent director. At the instance that a company wants to
retain an independent director who has served for nine (9) years, the Board should provide
meritorious justification/ s and seek shareholders’ approval during the annual shareholders’
meeting; and Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year term is from 2012.

The Company has amended its By-laws incorporating the provisions of SRC Rule 38, as
amended, on March 13, 2013 which has been duly approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on 21 May 2013.

Period in Which Directors and Executive Officers Should Serve
The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of one (1) year.
Term of Office of a Director

The seven (7) directors shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stockholders
owning majority of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one (1) year and shall serve until
the election and qualification of their successors.

(4) Family Relationships

Mr. Isidro Alcantara, Jr. the Company’s Chairman is the father of Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara,
VP for Marketing. Other than the ones disclosed, there are no other family relationships
known to the registrant.

(5) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge of the Company, there has been no occurrence of any of the following
events during the past five (5) years up to latest date that are material to an evaluation of the
ability and integrity of any director, any person nominated to become director, executive
officer or control person of the Company:

1. Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such
person was a general partner or executive officer whether at the time of insolvency or within
two (2) vears prior to that time;
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2. Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, in any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other
minor offenses;

3. Any final and executory order, judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction,
domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily, enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise
limiting involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities;
and

4. Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court or competent jurisdiction
(in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or domestic or foreign exchange or
electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for violation of a securities or
commodities law.

There are no legal proceedings to which the Company or its subsidiary or any of their
properties is involved in or subject to any legal proceedings which would have material effect
adverse effect on the business or financial position of the Company or its subsidiary.

(6) Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the business since the
Company considers the collective efforts of ail its employees as instrumental to the success of
the Company.

(7) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business enters into transaction with related parties
consisting primarily of non-interest bearing advances for working capital requirements, The
Company does not have any material transactions in 2015.

No transaction was entered by the Company with parties who are not considered related
parties but with whom the Company or its related parties have a relationship that enables the
parties to negotiate terms of material transactions.

Resignation or Refusal to Stand for Re-election by Members of the Board of Directors
Mr. Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr. will no longer stand for re-election due to his retirement.
Atty. Lazaro resigned on 02 November 2017 to concentrate on other matters.
ITEM 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
1) Compensation Table
The table below summarizes the aggregate compensation of the Company’s CEO and the four

most highly compensated employees, as well as the aggregate compensation paid to all
directors and officers as a group for the years, 2014, 2015 and 2016.

Name and Principal Year | Salary Bonuses Other Total
Position Benefits
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CEO and Top 4 2014 3,461,012 268,125 | 184,208 | 3,913,345
Executive Officers, 2015 1,515,757 3,820,843 | - 5,336,600
As a group named 2018 = - 199,673 199,673

above
All Other Officers i
and Directors, as.a 2014 5,381,529 428,741 294,555 6,104,825
group unnamed
2015 1,515,757 | 3,820,843 - 5,336,600
| 2016 - - 140,850 140,850

The estimated compensation of the directors and officers for 2017 is PhP 500,000.00. For the
ensuing vear, the estimated compensation of the directors and officers is PhF 1,000,000.00. The
Company has minimal operations and engages consultants as necessary.

2) Compensation of Directors
Standard Arrangement

Other than payment of reasonable per diem as may be determined by the Board for every
meeting, there are no standard arrangement pursuant to which directors of the company are
compensated directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director.

Other Arrangement

There are no other arrangements pursuant to which directors of the company are
compensated directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director.

3} Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in Control
Arrangements

There are no other special contracts of employment between the Company and the named
directors and executive officers, as well as special compensatory plans or arrangements

There are no arrangements for compensation to be received by the officers from the Company
in the event of a change in control of the Company.

ITEM 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

a) Independent Public Accountants, Reves Tacandong & Co. was nominated as the
Corporation’s external auditors for the ensuing year which shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval during the Annual Meeting. The Recommended partner -
in charge is Ms. Belinda Fernando.

b} The 2015 - 2016 audit of the Company by Accountants, Reyes Tacandong & Co.
(RTC) is in compliance with SRC Rule 68, Paragraph 3 (b} (iv) which provides that
the external auditor should be rotated every five (5) years or earlier or the handling
partner shall be changed. At present, RTC's account partner handling the
Corporation is Ms. Belinda Fernando since 2015. She is due for rotation in 2020, A
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two year cooling off period shall be observed in the re-engagement of the same
signing partner or individual.

c) Representatives of RTC will be present during the annual meeting and will be
given the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also
expected to respond to appropriate questions if needed. There was no event where
RTC and the Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating
to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing
scope or procedure. Except as stated in the report of independent auditors, the
Corporation has no disagreements with its auditors.

The following are members of the Audit Committee:

Manuel M. Lazaro (Chairman)
Ge Lin {independent director)
Anthony M. Te

ITEM 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

No action is proposed to be taken during the stockholders’ meeting with regard to any bonus,
profit sharing, pension/retirement plan, granting of any extension of options, warrants or
rights to purchase any securities.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR
EXCHANGE

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to authorization or
Issuance of securities.

ITEM 10, MODIFICATION OR EXCIHANGE OF SECURITIES

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the modification
of any class of the Company's securities or the issnance of authorization for issuance of one
class of the Company’s securities in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

ITEM 11. FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

The audited financial statements as of December 31, 2016, Management's Discussion and
Analysis, Market Price of Shares and Dividends and other data related to the Company's
financial information are attached hereto.

ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SIMILAR MATTERS
There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to merger,
consolidation, acquisition by, sale or liquidation of the Company.

ITEM 13. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

14 |Page
AG Finanee Incorporated
Information Statement



No action is to be taken with respect to acquisition or disposition of property.

ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Company is not taking any action, which involves the restatement of any of its assets,
capital, or surplus account.

D. OTHER MATTERS

ITEM I5. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS

The following matters shall be submitted to the vote of stockholders of the Company during
the stockholders’ meeting.

1.
X
3.

N oW

=

Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Stockholders” Meeting

Approval of the Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Approval of the Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation to
change the name of the Corporation from AG Finance Inc. to Ferronoux
Holdings Inc.

Ratification of Previous Resolution to Amend the Articles of Incorporation to
change the primary purpose from leasing and finance to that of a holding
company.

Ratification of Management’s Acts

Election of Directors

Approval of appointment of Reyes Tacandong and Co. as the Company’s
external auditor

Other Matters

Adjournment

ITEM 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

All corporate actions to be taken up at the annual stockholders’ meeting will be submitted to
the stockholders of the Registrant for their approval in accordance with the requirements of

the Corporation Code.
Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Notice and

Cuorum.

ITEM 17. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

On 07 April 2017, the Board of Directors approved the amendment of the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation to change its name from AG Finance Inc. to
Ferronoux Holdings Inc. subject to approval of the shareholders,

On 06 March 2015, the Board of Directors resolved to change the primary purpose of
the Corporation from leasing and finance to that of the holding company. Thereupon,
Article II of the Articles of Incorporation will be changed as follows:

To acquire by purchase, exchange, assignment, gift or otherwise, and to hold,
own, and use for investment or otherwise, and to sell, assign, transfer,
exchange, lease, let, develop, mortgage, pledge, deal in and with and otherwise
operate, enjoy and dispose of, any and all properties of every kind and
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description and whatever situated, as and to the extent permitted by law,
including, but not limited to, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, shares of
capital stock, or other securities and obligations, created, negotiated or issued
by any corporation, association, or other entity, foreign or domestic and while
the owner, holder, or possessor, thereof, to exercise all the rights, powers, and
privileges of ownership or any other interest therein, including the right to
receive, collect and dispose of, any and all dividends, interest and income,
derived therefrom, and the right to vote on any proprietary or other interest,
on any shares of the capital stock and upon any bonds, debentures, or other
securities, having voting power, so owned or held, without however engaging
in the business of an investment company under the Investment Company Act
or a financing company or a broker of dealer in securities of stock.

The Shareholders approved the amendment of the primary purpose last 17 April 2015.
Hence, the present action is merely for ratification of the previous resolution on the
amendment of the primary purpose for implementation.

ITEM 8, OTHER PROPOSED ACTIONS

Ratification of Management's Acts

Election of Directors

Approval of appointment of Reyes Tacandong and Co. as the Company’s external
auditor

ITEM 9. VOTING PROCEDURES

Under the Corporation Code, the affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least two
thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation shall be necessary for the
approval of the proposed amendment to the Articles of incorporation of the Corporation.

Except in cases where a higher vote is required under the Corporation Code, the approval of
any corporate action shall require the majority vote of all the stockholders present in the
meeting, it constituting a quorum.

Except in cases where voting by ballot is applicable, voting and counting shall be viva voce.
if by ballot, the counting shall be supervised by the external auditors and transfer agent of the
Company.

All proxies must be in the hands of the Secretary at least ten (10) days before the time set for
the meeting, Such proxies filed with the Secretary may be revoked by the stockholders either
in an instrument in writing duly presented and recorded with the Secretary prior to a
scheduled meeting or their personal attendance at the meeting, (Section 7 of the By-Laws).

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER(S), THE CORPORATION
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER(S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-
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A, FREE OF CHARGE, EXCEFPT FOE THE EXHIBIT ATTACHED THERETO, WHICH
SHALL BECHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM
17-A SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching at 4% Floor Citibank Center,
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the
City of Makati on , 2017.

AG FINANCE, INCQRPORATED

Diane Madelyn . Ching
Corporate Secretary

AG Finance Incorporated
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
Pursuant to SRC Rule 20

For the Annual Stockholders” Meeting
On December 11, 2017

L

IL.

III.

Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements of AG Finance Incorporated (AGF) for the years
ended as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are attached to this report.

Information on Independent Accountants and other Related Matters

The Company’s financial statements for the years ended December 31 2016 and 2015 have
been audited by Reyes Tacandong &Co. (“"RTC"), independent auditors, as stated in their
reports appearing herein.

Ms. Belinda B. Fernando is the Company’s current audit partner. We have not had any
disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with our current external auditors
for the periods or any subsequent interim period.

There were no disagreements with RTC on any matter of accounting and financial
disclosure.

The following table sets out the aggregate fees incurred for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2015 for professional services rendered by RTC:

2016 2015
Audit and Audit-Related Services ¥677,600 P633,291

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following discussion and analysis is based on the audited financial statements as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements.

Summary Financial Information
The Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years ended

December 31, 2016 and 2013 are hereto attached.

The following table sets forth the summary financial information for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Summary of Income Statement
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Years Ended December 31

2016 2015 2014
INCOME B6, 778,721 E35,220,811 ¥52,215,436
EXPENSES (1,654,282) (20,155,497) (32,849,830)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) NET - (23,641,540) (405,496)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 5,124,439 (8,576,226) 48,960,110
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 464,354 1,242,563 26,496,625
NET INCOME (LOSS) 4,660,085 (9,818,794) 22,463,485
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) - 166,847 (318,810)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) B4,660,085 (B9,651,947) 222,144 675
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER
SHARE B0.02 (E0.04) E0.00
Summary of Balance Sheet
December 31
2016 25
ASSETS
Current Assets 2,603,939 F2,340,362
Noncurrent Assets 334,187,582 327 409,660
B336,791,521 B320,750,022
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities P2,431,005 E513,945
Noncurrent Liability 464,354 -
2,895,359 513,945
Equity 333,896,162 329,236,077
B336,791,521 $329.750,022
Summary of net cash flows
Years Ended December 31
2016 2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES P263,077 (F172,078,957) 215,325,813
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES - 865,177 27,761,716
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES - (123,057,281) -
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 263,077 (294,417,969) 43,140,816
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR 61,425 294,479,394 251,338,578
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 324,502 B61,425 P294,479,394
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITY
Unpaid portion of acquisition cost of

AFS5 - P
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financial assets

2016 vs. 2015

Results of operations

In million

Audited Increase(Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount %

Income 6.78 35.22 (28.44) (80.75)
Expenses 1.65 20,16 (18.51) (91.82)
Other Income (Charges) - (23.64) (23.64) (100)

Income decreased by P28.44 million or 80.75% as compared last year. In June 2015, the
Company ceased its lending activities which resulted to lower interest income.

Expenses decreased by P18.51 million or 91.82% due to ceasation of lending activities.
Significant changes in the expense accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016 versus the
same period last year are as follows:

» Decrease in Salaries and employee benefits by P6.44 million or equivalent to 100.00% due
to termination of all employees on June 2015.

e Decrease in Taxes and licenses by P4.93 million or equivalent to 100.00% as a result of
ceasing the lending activities. The decrease pertains mainly to the tax in relation to lending
transaction such as Documentary stamp tax and gross receipt tax.

¢ Decrease in Rent by P1.48 million or equivalent to 100.00% due to the ceasation of lending
activities.

Other charges decreased by $£23.64 due to last year’s loss on sale of loans receivable of 11.64
million and finance cost of #11.87 million.

Financial Position

Audited Increase{Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount Yo
(in PhP Millions)
Assets $336.79 P329.75 704 213
Liabilities 2.89 0.51 238 466.67
Stockholders’ Equity 333.90  329.24 466 142

Assets

The total assets of the Company increased by $7.04 million or 2.13% from P329.75 million as
of December 31, 2015 to 336.79 million as of December 31, 2016, The increase was mainly due
to the net effect of the following:

e Cash increased by P0.26 million or 433.33% mainly due to advances received from
affiliates.
s Note receivable increased by £6.78 million or 2.00% due to the accretion of interest income

Liabilities
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As of December 31, 2016, the total liabilities of the Company increased by $2.38 million or
equivalent to 466.36% from P0.51 million as of December 31, 2015 as compared to P2.90
million as of December 31, 2016. The increase was due to the following:

* Current Liabilities increased by £1.90 million or 373.01%, mainly due to increase in
payable from affiliate by £1.25 million.

» Non current Liabilities increased by P0.46 million due to deferred tax liability arising
from accretion of note receivable.

Stockholders” Equity

As of year-end 2016, the stockholders’ equity increased by #4.66 million from
$320.24 million as of December 31, 2015 to £333.90 million as of December 31, 2016. The
increase was attributable to the net income of #4.66 million in 2016.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2015 and 2014
are as follows:
Results of operations

Interest income decreased by P46.99 million or 57.16% as compared last year. In June 2015,
the Company ceased its lending activities which resulted to lower interest income,

Expenses decreased by P12.69 million or 38.64% due to cessation of lending activities.
Significant changes in the expense accounts for the year ended December 31, 2015 versus the
same period last year are as follows:

e Decrease in Salaries and employee benefits by $4.76 million or equivalent to 42.47% due
to termination of employees on June 2015.

e Decrease in Taxes and licenses by £2.19 million or equivalent to 30.72% as a result of
ceasing the lending activities. The decrease pertains mainly to the tax in relation to lending,
transaction such as Documentary stamp tax and gross receipt tax.

¢ Decreased in Depreciation expense by P1.86 million or 91.66% mainly due to disposal of
property and equipment.

¢ Increase in Rent by P1.20 million or 424.19% because the Company is renting its office
space at PSE Centre, Pasig City.

Other charges increased by P23.23 is attiibutable to loss on sale of loans receivable of P11.64
million and finance cost of P11.87 million.

Financial Position

Assets

The total assets of the Company decreased by P146.16 million or 30.71% from P475.91 million
as of December 31, 2014 to £329.75 million as of December 31, 2015. The decrease was mainly
due to the net effect of the following;

e Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P294.42 million or 99.98% mainly due to
payment of dividends to its stockholders and payment of payables.
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e On May 5, 2015, all of the Company’s outstanding receivables with carrying amount of
P332.60 were exchange for a five year note receivable with fair value of 32741 million.

e Other current assets increased by P2,06 million or 900.32% is attributable to creditable tax
on current income tax.

e Property and equipment decreased by P0.47 million or 100.00% due to disposal of
property and equipment at its carrying amount.

Liabilities

As of December 31, 2015, the total liabilities of the Company decreased by P13.46 million or
equivalent to 96.35% from P13.97 million as of December 31, 2014 as compared to P0.51
million as of December 31, 2015, The decrease was due to the following:

e Current Liabilities decreased by P10.26 million or 95.23%, mainly due to payment of 2014
income tax payable of P6.25 million and payment of accrued expenses and other current
liabilities of P4.01,

e Non current Liabilities decreased by P3.19 million due to payment of retirement benefit
liability to terminated employees.

Stockholders’ Equity

As of year-end 2015, the stockholders’ equity decreased by P132.71 million from P461.95
million as of December 31, 2014 to P329.24 million as of December 31, 2015. The decrease was
attributable to the payment of cash dividend of P123.06 million and net operating loss of
£9.65 million.

Material changes to the Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2014 compared
to December 31, 2013 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

Cash
Cash increased by 17.16% to #294.48 million as of December 31, 2014 from P251.34 million as
of December 31, 2013. The increase was mainly due to sale of assets and increase in collection.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment decreased by 96.84% to P0.47 million as of December 31, 2014 from
£14.89 million as of December 31, 2013. The decrease was primarily due to the Company’s
disposal of transportation equipment, condominium and condominium improvement,
amounting to P12.9 million net of depreciation for the year amounting to ’1.62 million.

Other assets
Deferred tax asset Deferred tax asset increased by 69.29% to #13.22 million as of December

31, 2014 from P7.81 million as of December 31, 2013. The increase was mainly due to tax impact
of impairment loss recorded during the year.

Advances to employees and clients
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Advances to employees and clients decreased by 73.21% to P0.18 million as of December 31,
2014 from P0.67 million as of December 31, 2013, The decrease was due to liquidation of
employees advances at the end of the year.

Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous asset increased by 17.91% to P0.60 million as of December 31, 2014 from P0.51
million as of December 31, 2013. The increase was due to purchase of software.

Accrued expenses and other payables
Accrued expenses and other payables include unpaid utilities, professional fees, relirement
benefit obligations, withholding taxes and interest and other expenses.

Accrued expenses and other payables increased by 7.58% to 7.71 million as of December 31,
2014 from P7.17 million as of December 31, 2013. The increase was due to additional accrual
of post-employment benefit obligation.

Income tax payable

Income tax payable increased by 52.65% to P6.25 million as of December 31, 2014 from P4.10
million as of December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to gain from sale of assets in
the amount of P15.5 million.

Capital stock

Deposit for future stock subscription

On June 29, 2012, the Company’s BOD and stockholders approved the application for increase
in the Company’s authorized capital stock from P75 million divided into 75 million shares of
stock to P550million divided into 550 million shares both with a par value of P1.00 per share.
On the same day, the Company’s BOD approved the declaration of stock dividends
amounting to P65.60 million to be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock. Out
of the increase, P118.75 million worth of shares were subscribed and partly paid in the form
of cash and partly issued as stock dividends. On December 11, 2012 and December 14, 2012,
the stockholders subscribed to additional shares by paying cash amounting to £33.15 million.
As of December 31, 2013, the amount of the subscription paid by the stockholders are
presented as part of Capital Stock account in the 2013 statement of financial position.

Stock dividend distributable

On June 29, 2012, the Company’'s BOD approved the declaration of stock dividends
amounting to P65,600,002 or 65,600,002 shares at P1 par value. On February 13, 2013, the SEC
approved the Company’s application for the increase in its authorized capital stock. Portion
of the increase was subscribed in the form of cash and stock dividends. As of December 31,
2013, the amount of the subscription paid in the form of stock dividends by the stockholders
are presented as part of Capital Stock account in the 2013 statement of financial position.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings increased by 33.56% to P138.30 million as of December 31, 2014 from

P103.55 million as of December 31, 2013. The increase arose from the net income after tax of
the company for the calendar year, amounting to £34.7 million.
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Key Performance Indicators

IV.

V.

VL

2014 | 2015 2016
Return on Asset (%) 0 [ (0.02%) | 0.01%
Return on Equity (%) | 0 (0.03%) | (0.03%)

1/ Return on assets (ROA) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to
average assets.
2/ Return on equity (ROE) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to

average equit}r.

Brief Description of the General Nature and Scope of the Business
The Company was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 14, 2001.

The Company’s shares of stock were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on
August 13, 2013. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 261,824,002 shares of the Company
are listed in the PSE.

On June 25, 2015, RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM or the Parent Company)
acquired 183,276,801 shares representing 70% interest in the Company from various
stockholders.

Status of Operations

The Company’s operating segment consists only of lending activities which was winded
down in 2015. The Company will be applying with the SEC for the change of its principal
purpose to a holding company.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
The Company has no property as September 30, 2017.

Business Transactions with Related Parties

The Company as of December 31, 2016 and 20115 advances from its wholly-owned
subsidiary and affiliate are as follows:

Related Party Under Common Control

Nature of Amount of Transaction  Outstanding Balance

Transaction 2016 2015 2016 2015
Due to a related
party
Bright Kindle Advances for
Resources & working
Investments, Inc. capital 1,799,801 B244 656 B2,044 457 P244 656

VII. Employees
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As of December 31, 2016, the Company has no regular employees.
VIII. Plan of Operation

The Company, under its new name and purpose, plans to make investments, whether in
existing companies or new ventures, with high potential value to build its portfolio.

IX. Status of Operations
The Company has no significant operational activity.

X. Dividends
The Company has not paid dividend for the years 2016 and 2015.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of as of
September 30, 2017 and for nine months period ended September 30, 2017 with
comparative audited figure as of December 31, 2016

The unaudited Financial Statement of AG Finance Incorporated as of September 30, 2017 and
for nine months period ended September 30, 2017 with comparative audited figure as of
December 31, 2016 are in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there
were no changes made in accounting policies and methods of computation in the preparation
of the interim financial statements.

Summary of Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016

September  Dec. 31, September 30, 2017 vs.
30, 2017 2016 Dec. 31, 2016
Unaudited  Audited
Amount  Percentage
Increase Increase
(decrease)  (decrease)
(#'000) (P'000) (#000)

Current assets 2,635 P2,604 £31 1.19%
Noncurrent assets 339,343 334,188 5,156 1.54%
Total Assets P341,978 P336,702 B5, 187 1.54%
Current liabilities £3,595 $2,432 P1,164 47.86%
_Noncurrent liabilities 464 dbd = =
Total Liabilities 4,059 2,894 1,164 40,20%
Stockholders’ Equity 337,919 333,894 4,023 1.20%
Total ]..iabilifieg and Stockholders’ Equit P341,978 F'Efﬁﬁ,?gi PS5, 187 1.54%

Summary of Income Statements for the nine months and three months period ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016.

For Nine months ending For three months ending
September 30 September 30
20§17 2016 2017 2016
(P'000) (P'000) (P'000) (#000)
Interest Income P5,156 1 5,156 -
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Other Operation Expense (1,133) (923) (68) (39)
Loss Before Tax 4,023 (922) (5,088) (39)
Tax Expense - e = =
MNet income (loss) for the period P4,023 (P922) (P5,088) (P39)

Summary of Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months period ending September 30, 2017
and September 30, 2016.

For nine months For three months
ending ending
2007 2016 2017 2016
($°000) (#000) (PPO00)  (P'000)
Cash (used) provided in
operaling activities P31 P109 (P68) Pl4
Cash in banks December 31, 325 a6l 424 156
2016
Cash in banks September 30, P356 P170 P356 P170
2017

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation

On March 6, 2015, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the change of the Company’s
principal purpose to a holding company, including investment in mining and smelting
operations as secondary purpose.

On June 26, 2015, the company disclosed that on June 25, 2015 Mr. Tony O. King and his
family, that they have sold to RYM Business Management Corporation 183,276,801 common
shares or 70% of AG Finance through a block sale for P280.00 million or approximately # 1.53
per share.

On April 20, 2015, the shareholders approved the change in the Company's primary purpose
from leasing and finance to that of a holding company, and adding as a secondary purpose,
mining and smelting operations, and the amendment of the Company's Articles of
Incorporation to reflect the changes in the primary and secondary purposes. On December 18,
2015, the stockholders approved the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to change its
corporate name from AG Finance Incorporated to Ferronoux Metals Refinery Inc., change of
principal address from Unit 2205-A, East Tower Philippine Stock Exchange Center Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City to 16th Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
and to increase the number of directors from 7 to 9 and Amendment of the Corporation’s By
Laws to increase the number of directors from 7 to 9, change the date of the Annual Meeting
from last Friday of June to last Wednesday of May as stated in Article 11 Section 1, change of
stock symbol from AGF to FMR, election of the directors and appointment of Reyes
Tacandong & Co. as the Corporation’s external auditor. On April 7, 2017, the Board approved
the change of Corporate name to Ferronoux Holdings, Inc. subject to approval of the
shareholders.

On June 30, 2015, the Company ceased its lending activities.
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Results of Operation
The following discussion and analysis is based on the unaudited interim financial statements
for nine months period ending September 30, 2017 and 2016.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 Compared with the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2016 (Increase/Decrease of 5% or More)

Interest Income

Interest income were $3.16 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 compared
to P0.7 thousand for the same period in 2016. The huge increase is due to the interest accrued
from note receivable.

Other Operaling expenses

Other Operating expenses were £1.13 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017
compared to P0.92 million for the same period in 2016, an increase £0.21 million or 23%. The
increase mainly due to the payment of taxes and licenses for the period.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2017 Compared with the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2016 (Increase/Decrease of 5% or More)

Interest Income

Interest income were $5.16 million for the three months ended September 30, 2017 compared
to P0.06 thousand for the same period in 2016. The huge increase is due to the interest accrued
from note receivable.

Other Operating expenses
Other Operating expenses were P0.068 million for the three months ended September 30, 2017
compared to P0.039 million for the same period in 2016, an increase of £.029 million or 43% is

due to payment of directors fee.
Statements of Financial Position

The significant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the nine
months ended September 30, 2017 compared to December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Total assets were 341,98 million as of September 30, 2017 compared to P336.8 million for the
same period in 2016, an increase of P5.18 million or 0.02%. The increase is mainly due to
increase of note receivable from the computed interest

Total Liabilities increased by P1.16 million or 40.19% from 2.4 million to $4.05 million mainly
due to advances from Bright Kindle Resources and Investments, Inc.

Total Equity increased by P4.02 million or 1.20% is mainly due to net income for the interim
period.
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Statements of Cash Flows

The net cash provided in operating activities amounted to £31.6 thousand for the nine months
ended September 30, 2017 compared to net cash provided last year amounted P107.8
thousand. The increase in cash from operating activities is the net result of the following;

+ Net income generated during the third quarter this year,
¢ Advances from related parties

As a result, the cash as at September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 amounted to P(0.36
million and P0.16 million, respectively.

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis

Unaudited Audited  Increase (Decrease)
September 30, 2017 2016 Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in banks $356,111 P324,502 #31,609 9.74%
Other current assets 2,278,937 2,279,437 (500) (0.02%)
Total Current Assets 2,635,048 2,603,939 31,109 1.19%
Noncurrent Assets
Note receivable 339,343,090 334,187,582 5,155,508 1.54%
P341,978,138 P336,791,521 £5,186,617 1.54%
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current habilities £3,594,557 P2.4737,006 1,163,551 47 Ba%
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilites 464,354 464,354 = &
Total Liabilities 4,058,911 2,895,360 1,163,551  40.19%
Equity
Capital stock 261,524,002 261,824,002 - =
Additional paid-in capital 74,277,248 74,277,248 = -
Deficit 1,817,977 (2,205,089) 4,023,065 (182.44%)
Total Equity 337,919,227 333,896,161 4,023,065 1.20%
£341,978,138 P336,791,521 $5,186,616 1.54%
FINANCIAL INDICATORS
As of September 30, As of September 30,
2:m7 2016
Net income (loss) 4,023,065 (922,584)
Quick assets 356,111 169,910
Current assets 2,635,048 2,448,847
Total assets 341,978,138 329,858,507
Current liabilities 3,594,557 1,545,013
| Total liabilities 4,058,911 1,545,013
Stockholders’equity 337,919,227 328,313,493
Number of common shares outstanding 261,842,002 261,842,002
Current Ratiol / 0.73:1.00 1.59:1.00
Debt to Equity Ratio2/ 0.012:1.00 005:1.00
Asset to Equity Ratio3/ 1.01:1.00 1:1.00
Return on Assetsd/ 0.012 (0.003)
Return on Equity5/ _0.012 (0.003)
| Book Value per share 1.29 per share 1.25 per share

1/ Current assets divided by current linbilities

2/ Tolal liabilities divided by equity

3/ Total assets divided by equity

4/ Net income divided by average assets
5/ Net income divided by average equity

6/ Tolal common stockholder’s equity divided by

Number of common shares

AGG Finance Incorporated
Information Stotement
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OTHER INFORMATION

a. There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that have
a material impact on the Company’s liguidity.

b. There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company.

c. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, and
other relationships of the company with unconsclidated entities, or other persons were
created during the interim period.

d. There are no material commitments for capital expenditures during the interim period.

e. There are no known trends, evenis or uncertainties that have or are reasonably
expected to have a material impact on net sales/ revenues/ income from continuing
operations.

f. There is no significant income or expense that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

g. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operation.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

The issuer may, at its option, report under this item any information not previously reported
in a report on SEC Form 17-C. If disclosure of such information is made under this Part 11, it
need not be repeated in a report on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed
with respect to such information or in a subsequent report on Form 17-Q.

PART III - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
Liquidity Ratio

a. Current Ratio

Total Current Assets/ Total Current Liabilities 0.73:1.00
b. Quick Ratio

Quick asset / Total Current Liabilities = 0.10:1.00

Solvency Ratio
a. Debt Ratio
Total liabilities / Total assets = 0,012:1.00
b. Debt to Equity Ratio
Total liabilities / Shareholder’s Equity = 0.012:1.00

Profitability Ratio
a. Return on Equity Ratio
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Net loss / Average shareholder’s equity = 0.012
b. Return on Assels
Net loss / Average Total assets = (1.012
c. Asset to Equity Ratio:
Total Assets / Ave, Stockholders’ Equity = 1.01:1.00
d. Asset Turnover
Revenue/Total Assets =0.00

Market Information

The closing market price of the Company’s common stock in the Philippine Stock Exchange
on 30 October 2017 is PhP 4.79

The high and low prices for each quarter of 2016 and 2017 is provided below.

Quarter Stock High Low

10 2016 | AGF 3.60 1.96
20 2016 | AGF 4.60 2.79
3002016 | AGF 3.99 3.24
4002016 | AGF 3.86 3.15
10 2017 | AGF 4,19 3.01
20 2017 | AGF 5.01 3.00
302017 | AGF 5.50 3.60

The top 20 stockholders of the Company as of 30 October 2017 is provided below:

LIST OF TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS

As of October 30, 2017
TOTAL
STOCKHOLDER'S NAME HOLDINGS PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL NATIONALITY
(SUBSCRIBED)

PCD NOMINEE CORP. [FILIPINO) 261,756.23 99.974 FILIPINO
JOSELYN C. TIU 18,747 0.007 FILIPINO
MARIORIE VILLANUEWVA 18,747 0.007 FILIPINO
LEILA E. JORGE 10,001 0.004 FILIPINO
FELISA D. KING 8,747 0.003 FILIPINO
MNOMN-

PCD NOMINEE CORP. {NON-FIL) 8,011 0.003 FILIPING
REMEGIO C. DAYANDAYAN 1,000 0. 000 FILIPING
RAMON N. SANTOS 1,000 0. 000 FILIPING
JESUS SAN LUIS VALENCIA 1,000 0. 000 FILIPINO
ISIDRO C. ALCANTARA JR 100 0. 000 FILIPING
MANLUEL M. LAZARO 100 0. 000 FILIPINO
GE LIN 100 0. 000 CHIMNESE
ARSENIO K. SEBIAL JR 100 0. 000 FILIPINO
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ANTHONY M. TE

OWEN NATHANIEL 5 AU ITF: LI MARCUS
AU

PETER KHO

DALESON UY

GRAND TOTAL

AG Finance Incorporoted
Information Stotement

100 0. 000 FILIPINO
20 0. 000 FILIPING
2 0. 000 FILIPING
2 0. 000 FILIPING
261, 824,002 100. 000
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIFFPINES )
-2 )55,

TAGUIE G

1, DIANE MADELYN C. CHING, of legal age, Filipino, with office
address at 4t Floor Citibank Center Bldg., 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City,
after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law, do hereby depose

and state that:

1. I am the duly elected and qualified Corporate Secretary of AG
FINANCE INC. (the “Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the Philippines with principal office at 16 Floor
Citibank Center Bldg., Paseo de Roxas, Makati City,

2. I hereby certify that none of the Corporation’s Regular Direclors,
Independent Directors and Officers are appointed or employed in any
government agency.

IN WITNESS-WHEREOF, this Certificate was signed and issued this
i 2017 at Makati City, Philippines. _

DIANE MADE&N C. CHING
Carporate Secretary

WOV © 2 o

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this dayof
2017 afl’ ;iﬁfx‘r:‘tﬁ"fity, affiant exhibited to me her Driver's License No. N04-99-
451455 valid until 06 December 2017

Doc. Mo, ﬁ ;
Page No. _/» _;
Book No. _ &% ;

Series of 2[]1;7.




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, GE LIN (a.k.a. Gery Lam), Chinese, of legal age and a resident of 5], Mactan Tower,

Bay Gardens, Metrobank Ave, Pasay City 1300, after havin g been duly sworn to in accordance
with law do hereby declare that:

L.

2

I am a nominee for independent director of AG Finance, Inc. and have been its
independent direclor since 26 June 2015,

[ am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government
Ovwned and Confrolled Corporations):

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE

DC Steel Limited ~ Director/CEO 2017 to present
LianYunGang Huale Alloy Co., | President of International Div | 2011 to present
Litd. -
Dingchuang Groups Limited __Director/CEQO 2010 to present
HYSS Holdings Limited | Director / General Manager | 2009 to 2015
Zhejiang LongKai Industry Co., Ltd. Vice General Manager 2008 to 2015
E.Z. Mining Enterprises Inc. Fxecutive Director 2005 to present

ZhaoHeng Holdings Limited | Manager/Corporate Secretary | 1999 to 2005

2

b,

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of AG Finance, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC

Issuances,

Other than as disclosed in Item 2 above, I am not in any way related to any
director/ officer/ substantial shareholder of AG Finance, Inc. and its subsidiaries and

alliliates,

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceading,

I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilitics as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of AG Finance, Inc. of any changes in the
abovementioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.



Done this daﬁ}f of = {hif 2 atﬂﬁtﬁ'.ﬂl e

GELIN (a.k.éa, ésw LAM)

Affiant

g e 43

SQJBSQTEJ‘,@ED AND SWORN to before me this [t 0 8 é?eg[_wkjf
at = affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me
his/ her " issued at on

Page No. i e S
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S/
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Mathew-John Gonong Almogino, Filipino, of legal age and with business

and postal address 4% Floor, Citibank Centre Building, Paseo De Roxas, Salcedo
Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do
hereby declare that:

1. T am a nominee for Independent Director of AG Finance, Inc. for its board

meeting on 11 December 2017,

2. T am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including

Government Owned and Controlled Corporations):

| COMPANY/ORGANIZATION [POSITION/RELATIONSHIP [~ PERIOD OF

bl S A R e : e  SERVICE =
Realship Corporation Director/Corporate Secretary | May 2015 to Present
Ni;;?on Express Philippines Manager for Administration | September 2012 to
Corporation and Legal Services Present
Dcalﬁgtfz and Manalo Law Firm Senior Associate | October 2006 to
August 2012

w1

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of AG Finance, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances.

Other than as disclosed in Item 2 above, I am not in any way related to any
director/ officer/substantial shareholder of AG Finance, Inc. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates.

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its



Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

7. Ishall inform the Corporate Secretary of AG Finance, Inc. of any changes in
the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

L Fa i..-v._
!"l"ﬁ".".l 'i-‘hf_h_ d,r"l“F
Ly

Done this

1
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ﬂﬂ Y 770 at

PP affiant personally appeared before me am;i exhibited to me his
ﬁ'ﬂcm[ é anv System Identification Card numbered 33-1263535-1.

165 ATTY. VIRLILIO R BATALLA

Doc. N T
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

OF
AG FINANCE, INCORPORATED

Held at The Big Function Room,
Manila Golf & Country Club
Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City
On 16 December 2016 at 2:00 pm

STOCKHOLDERS PRESENT NUMBER OI SHARES PERCENTAGE
Stockholders represented by proxies 187,464,274 71.60%
Stockholders represented in person 19,451 0.007%
Total number of shares present in 187,483,725 71.61%
present and represented by proxy

Total Shares and Outstanding 261,624,002 100.0%

DIRECTORS PRESENT:

Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr,

Mr. Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr.

Mr. Anthony M. Te

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr.

Justice Manuel M. Lazaro {Independent Director)
Mr. Ge Lin a.k.a. Gery Lam (Independent Director)

DIRECTORS ABSENT:
Atty. Hermogene H. Real

Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching

/

Jr



1. CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman, Mr. lsidro C. Alcantara, Jr., called the meeting to order and
presided over the same. The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching

recorded the minutes of the meeting.

Ii. PROOF OF NOTICE OF MEETING AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

The Chairman inquired with the Corporate Secretary whether proper notices of
the meefing were sent to the stockholders of record of the Corporation and whether there
is quorum to proceed with the meeting. The Corporate Secretary certified that the notice
of the meeting has been sent to each stockholder of recard as of 18 November 2016, She
further certified that out of the {otal issued and outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation, there are present in person or by proxy, holders of 187 483,725 shares of
stock entitled to vote, representing an attendance of 71.61%, which is more than two
thirds (2/3) of the total issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation.
Therefore, there exists quorum to transact business at hand.

III.  READING AND APFROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The Chairman stated that the next item in the agenda is the reading and approval
of the minutes of the last shareholders’ meeting, The Corporate Secretary stated that
copies of the Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 December 2015 had been earlier
distributed. She further reported the highlights of the previous Annual Shareholders’
Meeting held on 17 December 2015 as follows: (1) the approval of the minutes of the
Special Shareholders’ Meeting last 17 April 2015; (2) approval of the management report;
(3) ratification of all acts; (4) the amendment of the Company's Articles of Incorporation
to: (a) change its name from AG Finance Incorporated to Ferronoux Metals Refinery Inc,;
(b) change of principal address from Unit 2205-A, East Tower Philippine Stock Exchange
Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City to 168 Floor, Citibank Tower, Paseo
de Roxas, Makati City; (c) to increase the number of divectors from 7 to 9; and of the By-
Laws to change the date of the Annual Meeting from last Friday of June to last
Wednesday of May as stated in Article Il Section I; (5) change of stock symbol from AGF

to FME,
There being no comment, correction or objection to the said minutes, upon motion
duly made and seconded, the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2015 was

approv ed,



IV. APPROVAL OF THE MANAGEMENT REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL |
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

The Chairman then stated that the next item on the agenda is the ﬁpprm'a] of the
Management Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2015, Mr. Rhodel B. Salvador presented the financial statements as well as the financial
highlights resulting from the Corporation’s operation for the year ending 2015, After
presentation, Mr. Alcantara presented the Company’s future plans. He stated that the
shareholders previously approved to change the name of the Corporation from AG
Finance, Inc. to Ferronoux Metals Refinery, Inc. and to change the purpose from a
financing company to a holding company. The change was in line with the management’s
decision to invest in mining properties or mining related activities. However, due to
uncertainties in the mining industry and the decline in nickel prices, the implementation
of the change of name was held off. After thorough evaluation, the management has
decided to pursue its plans. In this regard, the initial plan to change name and purpose
will now be implemented. The management is optimistic that the mining industry will
be Iucrative considering the increasing price of commodities. Upon motion duly made
and seconded, the shareholders noted the management report and ratified the change of
name from AG Finance, Inc. to Ferronoux Metals Refinery, Inc. Thereafter, the
shareholders approved the Audited Financial Stalements as discussed and circulated,
Thereupon, the shareholders resolved as follows:

“RESOLVED, as it is hereby resolved, that the change of name from AG
Finance, Inc. to Ferronoux Metals Refinery, Inc. be ratified and re-affirm.

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015 be approved.”

“RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the management report be noted.”

V. RATIFICATION OF THE ALL ACTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT

The Chairman stated that the next item in the matter is the ratification of all the
actions of the Board of Directors and management for the year 2015 up to the present. In
the course of operations, the Board of Directors and the officers of the corporation issued
resolutions, executed contracts and sold assets of the Corporation which are now subject
of ratification and confirmation of the sharcholders. Thereupon, after a motion duly made
and seconded, the shareholders approved the actions of the Board of Directors and
management for the year 2015 up to the present.



“RESOLVED, as it is hereby resolved, that all actions of the
directors and officers of the Corporationso taken in all of the above matters
be, and in all respects are approved, ratified, and confirmed as of the
respective dates when such actions were taken.”

V1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman then proceeded to the election of directors of the carporation for the
ensuing year and unti] the next election. There are seven (7} seats to be filled including
two (2) seats for independent directors. The Nominations Committee has nominated the

following directors:

Regular Directors:

Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.

Mr. Anthony M. Te

Mr. Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr.

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr.
Atty. Flermogene H. Real

Independent Directors:
Mr. Ge Lin a.k.a. Gery Lam
Justice Manuel M. Lazaro

Thereafter, it was moved, seconded, and unanimously resolved to close the
nominations. There being only seven (7) nominees to the position of seven (7) directors,
upon motion duly made and seconded, the Corporate Secretary was directed and
authorized to cast all votes of the stockholders present or represented at the meeting
equally among all the seven (7) nominees. The Chairman, therefore, declared the seven
(7) nominees as the duly elected members of the Board of Directors for the current term
to act as such until their successors are duly elected and qualified in accordance with the
By-Laws. Mr. Ge Lin and Justice Manuel Lazaro were duly recognized as the

Corporation’s current independent directors,

VII. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Chairman then stated the next item in the agenda which is the appointment
of the Corparation’s external auditor. The Audit Committee has recommended the re-
appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the Corporation’s external auditor. |

/.’ ;



Upon motion duly made and sceonded, the shareholders re-appointed the
auditing firm of Reyes Tacandong & Co, as the Corporation’s external auditor for the
current year, viz:

“"RESOLVED, as it is hereby resolved, that Reyes Tacandong & Co. be

appointed as external auditor.”

VIII. OTHER MATTERS AND ADJOURNMENT

The Chairman then opened {he table to discuss other matters. There being no
further matters to discuss or business to conduct, upon motion duly made and seconded,

the meeting was thereupon adjourned.

Prepared by:

DIANE MADFLYN C. CHING
Corporate Secretary

Aftested by:

]SIDRDC AK%L‘(PARA JR. ME

A I

‘v Chairman

Charrmnam

ARSENIG RSEBIAL, JR.
P?'fsrfd7{

#crf\" =
MANUEL M. LAZARO

GELIL
Independent Dirvector Independent Director
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. - Financial Statements

The unavdited Financial Statement of AG Finance Incorporated as of September 30, 2017 and for
|1it1a_muntlh period ended September 30, 20017 with comparative audited figure as of December 31,
2016 are in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there were no changes
made in accounting policies and methods of eomputation in the preparation of the interim financial

slatements,

Summary of Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016

Scptember  Dec. 31, September 30, 2017 vs,
w2017 2016 Dee. 31, 2006
Unaudited  Audited
Amoun Percentape
Increase Increasc
{decrease) {decrease)
(P 000y {FrQ00y (P 000
Current assels 12,635 2,604 #31 1.19%
Noncurrent assets 339,343 334,188 5,156 1.54%
Total Asscts 341,078 1136792 P5,187 1.54%
Current liabilities 3,595 P2,432 1,164 47.86%
Noncurrent liahilities dad 464 = i
Total Liabilities 4,059 2,898 1,164 40.20%
tockliolders’ Equity 37,019 333,894 4,023 1.20%
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity PI41.978  PI36,792 P5,187 1.54%

Summary of Income Statements for the nine months and three months period ended September

30, 2017 and 2016.

For Nine months ending

Yor three months ending

September 30 September 30
2017 2016 2017 2016
. (P00 {000} {(Fr000) (B 000
Interest Incothe 5156 Pl 5,156
Other Operation Expense (1.133) (023 (68) {39
Loss Before Tax 4,023 (922} (5,088} (3%
Tax Expense 5 2 = =
mIiT meome (loss) for the period 4,023 (Po22) (I'5,088) {F39)




Summary of Statement of Cash Flaws for the nine months period ending September 30, 2017 and
September 30, 20146,

For nine months For three months ending

oinding September 30
2017 2016 2007 2016
(P*000) (P000) (P*000) (P 000)
Cash (used) provided in operating
activifies P31 P1OD (FoH) P14
Cash in banks December 31, 2016 325 fil 424 156
“Cash i banks Seplember 30, P356 P170 P56 P170

207

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Opceration

On March 6, 2015, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the change of the Company’s principal
purpose to @ holding company, including investment in mining and smelting operalions as
secondary purpose,

On June 26, 2015, the company disclosed that on June 25, 2015 Mr. Tony O. King and his family,
that they have sold to RY'M Business Management Corporation 183,276,801 common shares or
70% of AG Finance through a block sale for P280,00 million or approximately £ 1.53 per share.

On April 20, 2015, the sharcholders approved the change in the Company's primary purpose from
leasing and finance to that of & holding company, and adding as a secondary purpose, mining and
smelting operations, and the amendment of the Company's Articles of Incorporation to reflect the
changes in the primary and secondary purposes, On December 18, 20135, the stockholders approved
the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to change its corporate name from AG Finance
Incorporated to Ferronoux Meials Refinery Inc., change of principal address from Unil 2205-A,
East Tower Philippine Stock Exchange Center Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasip City to 16tk
Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City end to increase fhe number of directors from 7
to 9 and Amendinent of the Corporation’s By Laws to increase the nuniber of directors from 7 to g,
change the date of the Annual Meeting from last Friday of June (o last Wednesday of May as stated
in Article Il Sectian 1, change of stock symbaol from AGF to FMR, election of the directors and
appointinent of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the Corporation’s external auditor. On April 7, 2017, the
Board approved the change of Corporate name to Ferronoux Holdings, Inc. subject to approval of
the Shareholders.

On June 30, 2015, the Company ceased its lending activities.

Hesults of Operation

The following discussion and analysis is based on the unaudited interim financial statements for
nine months period ending September 30, 2017 and 2016,

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 Compared with the Nine Months Ended September
30, 2016 {Increase/Decrease of 5% or More)



Intoevest fncome
Interest income were $5.16 million for the nine months ended Seplember 30, 2017 compared o

P07 thousand for the same period in 2016, The huge increase is due Lo the interest acerued from
note receivahle,

Other Operating expenses
Other Operating expenses were P1.13 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017
compared 1o P0.92 million for the same period in 2016, an increase P0.21 million or 23%. The

increase mainly due o the payment of taxes and licenses for the period,

Three Months Ended September 30, 2017 Compared with the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2016 (Increase/Decrease of 5% or Morg)

Interest fncome
Interesl income were P3.16 million for the three months ended September 30, 2017 eompared to

P0.06 thousand for the same period in 2016, The huge increase is due to the interest acerued from:
note receivable,

Ofiver Operating expenses
Cither Operating expenses were PO.068 million for the three months endad September 30, 2017

compared to P0.039 million for the same period in 2016, an increase of £.029 million or 43% is
due to payment of directors” fee,

Statements of Financial Pasition

The significant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the nine months
ended September 30, 2017 compared 1o Decemnber 31, 2016 are as follows:

Total assets were P341,98 million as of September 30, 2017 compared to P336.8 million for the
same period in 2016, an increase of 5,18 million or 0.02%. The increase is miainly due to Inferest

recogrized,

Total Liabilities increased by P1.16 million or 40.19% from P2.4 million to P4.05 million mainly
due to advances from Bright Kindle Kesources and Investments, Inc, to pay its operational
expenses,

Total Equity increased by P4.02 million or 1.20% is mainly due to net income for the interim
period.
Statements of Cash Flows

The net cash provided in operating activities amounted to P31.6 thousand for the nine months ended
September 30, 20017 compared to ner cash provided last year amounted P107.8 thousand. The
increase in cash from operating activities is the nel result of the following:

* Netincome generated during the third quarter this year.
» Advances from related parties

As a result, the cash as at September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 amounted to P0.36 million
and PO.16 million, respectively.



Horitontal and Vertical Analvsis

Unaudited Audited Increase (Decrease)
September 30, 2017 2016 Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cosh in banks ¥356,111 7324502 31,600 0. 74%
Other current assets 2,278,937 2,279,437 (5007 (0.02%)
Total Curront Assets 2,635,048 2,603,939 31,109 1.19%
Noncurrent Assefs
Note receivable 339343000 334 1R7 582 5,155 500 1.54%,
P341976.138  P336,791,521  P5,186,617 1.54%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities 13,594,557 2431006 P1,163,551 47.800%
Non-current Liabilities
Delerred tax lisbilities 464,354 464,354 = =
Total Liakilities 4,058,911 2,805 360 1,163,551 40.1%%
Eqnity
Capital stock 261,824,002 261,824,002 = o
Additional paid-in capital 74,277,248 74,277,248 3 T
Retained earnings (Deficit) 1L,817977  (2205089) 4023065 (18244%)
Tolal Hquif}' 337919227 333,894,161 4,023,065 1.20%
B5, 186,616 1.54%

F341,975,138

P336,701,521




FINANCIAL INIMCATORS

As of September 30, 2007 | As of September 30, 2016
Net meome (Joss) 4,023,065 (922,584} |
Quick assels 356,111 169,910 |
| Current assefs - 2,635,048 2,44}2,!*4?_"
Total assets 341,978,138 329,858,507
Current liabilities 3,504,557 | 1,545,013
| Total liabilities 4058911 1,545,013
Stockholders equity 337,919,227 318,313,493
Mumber of common shares outstanding 261,842.002 26,542,002
| Current Rafiol/ N 0.73:1.00 159:1.00
Diebt o Equity Ratio2/ L012:1.00 L05:1.00
Asset to Lguity Ratio3/ 1.071:1.00 Lo
Hetum on Assetsdl 0.012 {0.003) |
Return on Hoquity5/ 0.012 (0.003)
Book Value per share 129 per share 1;2_5 per shu_g.:_

I Curvent assets divided Iy enrrent Habilities

24 Toial liabilities divided by equity
3 Total assets divided by equily

4/ Net income divided by average assets
54 Net income divided by average eguity
6/ Total common siockholder's eguity divided

by Number of common shares

OTIER INFORMATION

There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or weertaintics that have a
There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial oblipation that is material

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, ohlipations, and other
relationships of the company with unconsolidated entitics, or other persons were created
There are no material commitments for capital expenditures during the interim period.

There are no known trends, events or uncertaintics thal have or are reasonably expeeted to
have a material impact on net sales! revenues/ incame from continuing operations,

There is na significant income or expense thal did not arise from the Company’s continuing

a.
material impacl on the Company’s hquidity.
b.
to the Company,
c.
during the interim period.
d.
c.
1
oaperations.
il

There is no seasonal espect that had & material effect on the financial condition or results of
oporation,



PART IT - OTHER INFORMATION

The issuer may, at its option, report under this item any information nol previously reported in a
reporl on SEC Form 17-C. If disclosure of such inforination is made under thus Part 10, it need not
be repeated i a report on Form 17-C which would olherwise be required to be filed with respect to
such mformation or in a subsequent report on Form 17-0).

PART I1I - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Liguidity Ratio

a
Current Ratio
Total Carremt Assets’ Total Corvent Liabilites 0.73:1.00

Quick Ratio
Quick asset / Total Current Liabilities = 0.10:1.00

Solvency Ratio
a,
Debt Ratio
Total liabilities / Total assets = 0.012:1.00
b.
Debt to Equity Ratio
Total liabilities / Shareholder’s Equity = 0.012:1.00

Profitability Ratio

a.
Return on Equity Ratio
Met loss / Average shareholder's equity = 0,012
b.
Return on Asscls
Net loss / Average Total assets = (0.012
c.
Assel to Eqguity Rario:
Total Assets / Ave. Stockholders® Equity = 1.01:1.00
d.
Assel Tumover
Revenue/ Total Assets = 0.00
e

Book Value per share
Tatal common stockhaolder’s equity / No. of common shares = 1,29 per share
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Signature; g 0 _
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AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Unaudited Audited
September 30, 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash i banks B156,111 P2 502
Other current assets 2,278,937 2,279,417
Total Current Assets 2,635,048 2,603,939
Noncurrent Assc
Mole receivable 339,343,000 334,187,582
P341,97H.138 P336,791,521
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Acerued expenses and other current liabilities P31,594,557 F2.431,005
Noneurrent Liability
Deferred tax linbility 464,354 464,354
Total Liabilities 4,058,911 2,895,359
Equity
Capital stock 261,824,002 261,824,002
Additional paid-in capital 74,277,248 74,277,248
Retained earnings (Deficit) 1,817,977 (2,205,088)
Tatal Equity 337,919,227 333,896,162

P341,978,138

P336,791,521

See geconpanying Notes fo Financial Statements.



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corporation)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Noles Sceptember 30, 20017 December 31, 2016
INCOME
Interest income 8 F5,156,177 PG,778,721
EXPENSES g {1,133,112) (1,654,280)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME
TAX 4,023,065 5,124,438
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX - 464,354
NET INCOME P4,023,065 P4,660,084
BASIC/ HILUTED LOSS FER

SHARE ) LD .00 8

See qecompanying Noies fo Financia! Siarements.



AGTINANCE INCORPORATED
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corporation)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Nine months ended

Three months ended

Mate September 30, September 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016

INCOME
Interest income 8 35,156,177 PR P5,155,675 P-
EXPENSES 8 (1,133,112) {923,285)  (67,875) (38850
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,023,065 (022,584) 5,087,800 (38,850)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX - - - 2
NET INCOME (1LOSS) P4,023,065  (PO22,584) PS087,800  (P38850)
BASICY DILUTED LOSS PER

SHARL 10) Pi.015 (POLOO4} PO02  (POODOLY

See aecompanyving Notev to Financial Statemens,



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20017 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Note

Tnandited

Unaudited

September 30, 2017 September 30, 2016

CAPITAL STOCK - 21 par value 1]
Authorized - 550,000,000 shares
Issued and oatstanding -

261,842,002 shares Fl61,824,002 B261,224,002
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning and end of quarler 74,277,245 74277248
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
Balance ot beginning of quarier (2,205,088} (6,805,173}
Met income (loss) 4,023,065 (922 584}
Ralance at end of the quarler 1,817,977 {7,787,757)
$337.019,227 PI28,311483

dee gecmmpanying Notes fo Financial Statements,



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
{A Subsidiary of RYM Blisinesa; T'Irlsl_nug{!ml:ni Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Three months period ended
Notg September 30,
2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before tax 5,087,800 (PR, THE)
Adjustments for:

Interest income (5,155,675) {62)
Operating profit before working capital changes {67,875) {38,850
Increase other current asset - 2,000
Increase in accrued expenses and other current

liahilities N - 50,301
Net cash provided (used) in operations (67.875) 13,451
__Interest received 67 e
Net cash provided in operating activities 67,708 13,513
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 423,819 156,397
CASH AT END OF PERIOD P356,111 P160,910

See accompanying Notey fo Financial Staienears,



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corporation)

STATEMLENT OF CASIH FLOWS

Nine mnnths period
ended September 30

Mote 2m7 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before tax P4,023,065 {PO22,584)
Adjustment(s for:

Interest income (5,156,177) {701}
Operating profit before working capital changes (1,133,112) (923,285}
Decrease in other current asse! S00 =
Increase acerued expenses and other current

liahilities 1,163,551 1,031,069
Nel cash generated from operations 30,939 107,784
___Interest received 670 701
Met cash provided by operating aclivities 31,609 T0E 485
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 324,502 61425
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 356,111 P165,910

See accompanying Notes fo Financiol Statements,



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp,)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

AG Finance Incorporated (the Company) was incorporated and repistered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 14, 2001 primarily to operate as a
financing company and provide shori-term, unsecured credit facilities to permanent rank-and-file
employees of medium-sized companies in the Philippines.

The Company's shares of stock were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)} on
August 13, 2013, As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 261,824,002 shares of the Company are
listed in the PSE.

O June 25, 2015, RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM or the Parent Company) acquired
183,276,501 shares representing 70% interest in the Company from various stockholders.

The Company's registered office is Unit 2205A Fast Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

Status of Operations

The Company’s operating segment consists only of lending activities which was winded down in
2015. The Company is in the process of applyving with the SEC for the change of its prineipal

purpase to a holding company.

2. Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policles

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in complience with Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of issuances by the Intemational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commiittee, issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council and
adopted by the SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

Measurement Bascs
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which is the Company’s

functional currency, All values are in ahsolute amount, unless otherwise stated,

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical basis. Historical cost
is generally based on the fuir value of the consideration iven in exchange of an asset.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date.

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of
an asset of @ liability. Fair values are caleporized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on inpuls used in the valuation technigues as follows:

»  Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active maskets for identical assets or labilities,

l1|Papge



2|0,

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

If the inputs wsed to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in
different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is cateporized in its
entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is sigmificant to
the entire measurement,

The Company recogmizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reparting period during which the change has occurred.

Further mnformation about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 15,
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for

annual perieds beginning on or after January 1, 2016;

* Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative — The
amendments clarify guidance on materiality and agpregation, the presentation of subtotals, the
structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.

The adaption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial stalements of the Company. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to

Tinancial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS Not Yet Adopted
Relevant new and amended PFRS whicl are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,
2016 and have nol been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods bepinning on or after January 1, 2017:

e Amendinents to PAS 7, Staiement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiarive — The amendments
require entitics to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from their finaneing activities,

o Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tares - Recognition of Deferved Yax Assets for Unrealized
Losses - The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related o unrealized
losses on debt instruments measured at {air value, to address diversity in practice.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 —

s  PFRS 9, Financial nstrvments — This standard will replace PAS 39, Financial Mstrunicnis;

Recognition and Measuwrement (and all the previous versions of PFRS 9). It contzins
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assels and financial
liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting and derecopnition,
PIRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently mensured at amartized cost
ar fair value (throupgh profil or loss or through olher comprehensive income), depending on
their classification by reference 1o (he business model within which they are held and fhen
contraciual cash flow characteristics.



For financial Liabilities, the most significant effet of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair
value option 1s taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss that is attributzhle to changes in the credit risk of that
lighility is recognized in other compreliensive fucome (rather than in profit or loss), unless this
creates an accouniing mismateh,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected eredit Joss™ model
based on the concept of providing for expecied losses at inception of a coniracl. It will no
longer be necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a eredil loss is
recognized,

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhau] allowing financial statements
to better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and
nan-financial risk exposures,

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,
Effective for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2019 -

* PFRS 16, Leases - Significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases
will be brought onlo lessees” statements of finaneial position under & single model (except
leases of less than 12 monthy and lesses of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction
between operating and {inance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged
and the distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any materal effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional
disclosures will be included in the notes financial statements, as applicable,

Financial Assets and Liahilitics

Date of Recognition. Financial assets and Hahilities are recopnized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes a party 1o the confractual provision of a financial instrument,
Financial instruments are initially recopnized at fair value. In the case nf]cguldr way purchasc or
sale of financial asset, recognition and derecognition, as applicshle, is donc using trade date
accounling.

Initial Recognition. Financial assets and lzbilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is
the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liahility).
The initial measurement of financial instru: nenls, exeept for those designated al ﬁﬂr value througl
profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Classification. The Company classifies its financizl assels at initial recognition under the
following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b} held-to-maturity (HTM) investments,
(¢) loans and receivahles and {d) available-for-sale (AFS) investments, Financial lighilitics, on the
other hand, are eclassified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilitics ar
amortized cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments
were acquited or incurred and whether or not the instruments are guoted in an aclive market.

“Day 1" Differences. Where the transaction in o non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrumnent or based on a valuation
technigue whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recosnizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a *Day 17 difference) in the statement of
comprehensive incomne. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Conpany
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deemed the transactions price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 17 difference
in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For
cach transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the *Day 17
dilTerence,

As at December 31, 2016, the Company does not have financial assets and labilities at FVPL,
HTM investments and AFS financial assets,

Lomus and Receivabivs, Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are nol quoled in an active markel, These are not enered
inte with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are nol classified or designated as
AFS investments or financial assel at FVPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assets
if maturity is within twelve months from reporling date.  Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurTent asseis.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the eflective interest method, less allowanece for impairment, i any,  Amortized cost is
culculated by taking into account any discount or premium on sequisition and any transaction cost
which are direcily attributable in the acquisition of the financial instrument. The amortization is

included in profit or loss.
This calegory includes cash in banks and note receivable,

Cther Financial Liahilitics at Amovtized Cost. Financisl liabilities are classified in this categary if
these are net held for trading or not designaled as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability.
These include lisbilities arising from operations or through borrowing,

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured al amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking inte account any
related issue costs, discount or premium, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized, as well as when there is amortization process.

This category includes accrued expenses and other current linbilities (excluding statutory
payables).

Derecognition of Financial Asscis and Liahilites

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a parl of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Company when:

. the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

. the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full withoul material delay to a fhird party under a “pass-through”
aITAngement; or

. the Company has transferred its right 1o receive cash flows from the assel and either
(2) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assels, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retzined substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred

control over e assel,
When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inle

4 pass-throuph arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel s recognized 1o the extent of the
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Company's continuing involverment in the assel. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guaranice over the ransferred asset, it any, is measured ai e Tower of original carrying value of
the asset and e maximum amount of consideraton that the Company could be required 1o pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Jiability
are substantinlly modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derccognition of the
ariginal liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying value is recopnized in profit or loss,

A modifieation is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective inlerest rate,
i different by at Jeast 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the

origringl liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liahility is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate a1 which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
cenditions o the market. The difference botween the carrying value of the original liahility and
fair value of the new liability is recognized in the separate statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 1024 threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrving value is adjusted by the costs or fees
peid or received in the restructuring,

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Linhilitics

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the nel amount reported in the statements of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized atmounts
and there is an intenticn to settle on a nel basis or to reslize the asset and seitle the Hability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master neting agreements where the related
assels and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position,

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is ohjective evidence that a financial asser
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
impaired if, and only if, there is ohjective evidence of impairment as a resull of one or more events
thal occurred afier the initial recognition of the assel (an incurred “loss event™) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated furure cash flows of the financizl assel or group of financial
assers that can be reliably estimated. The camying value of the impaired account is reduced to the
extent that it exceeds the ssset’s nel realizable value, Impairtnent losses are recognized in full in profit
or loss. It in & subscquent period, the amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased
hecause of an event occurring after impairment was recognized, the decline is allowed to be reversed
to profil or loss to the exten! that the resulting carrying value will not exceed the amortized cost
determined had no impairment been recopmized.

Assets Carvied af Amortized Cost. For financial assets carried at amortized cosl, the Company
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assels thal
are ndividually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually sipnificant,
It it is determined that no objeclive evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
linancial assel, whether significant or not, the assel is meluded in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment, Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of foture cash flows for proups of
such assels by being indicative of the deblor’s ahility to pay all amounts due sccording o the
coatractual terms of the assets being evalualed.  Assels that are individuvally assessed for
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impairment and for which an impairment Joss is or continues to be recagnized are not incloded in
g collective assessment of impairment,

If there #5 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been ineurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows diseounted at the assets” eriginal effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effeet of discounting is not material. The cartying value of the
asset shall be reduced directly or through the vse of an allowance aceount. The amount of loss
shall be recognized in profic or loss.

I, in & subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decrcases because of an
event occurring afler the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reduced by adjusting the allowance account, Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss {s
recogmized in the profit or loss, o the extent that the carrying value of the assel does net exceed its
anorlized cost at the reversal date.

Other Current Assets
Ciher current assets primarily include creditable withhelding taxes (CWT).

CHT. CWT are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes, CWT can
be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supporied by certificates
of ereditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation,

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value. The initial cost of properly and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impor!
duties, non-refundable purchase taxes alier deducting trade discounts and rebates and any directly
altributable costs of bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location for its intended use.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are localed and
capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalized as part of the equipment.

Expenditures incurred afler the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year fhe costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted
in an incrense in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. The cost of replacing a component
of an item of property and equipment is recoprized if il 15 probable that the future economic
benefils embodied within the component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured
religbly. The carrying value of the replaced component is derecopnized.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major componenis) of property and equipment.

Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-line basis with estimated useful lives of 3-5 years for
fumiture, fixtures and office eguipment.

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periedically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expecled pattern of economic benedits

from items of property and equipment,
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When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the relaled accumulated depreciation
and any fmpaimment o value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting pam or loss is credited
to or charged apainst current operations,

Impairment of Property and Equipment

Nonfinancial assets consisting of property and cquipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate fhat the carrying amount of an asset may nol be
recaverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount of an asse! exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generaling unit is written down o its Tecoverable amount,
The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
vilue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific 10 the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
mflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generaling unit to which the assel
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist ar may have decreased. If such indicalion
exists, the recoverable amount is estimared, A previously recognized impainment loss is reversed
only if there has heen a change in the estimates used to determine the assel’s recovershle amount
since the Inst impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amouni of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. Afier such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods
te allocate the assel's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over

remaining wselul life,

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, net of tax.

AFIC. Proceeds andfor fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recopnized as APIC,

Defieir. Deficit represents the accumulated net income or toss, less any dividends declared.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized as follows;

Interest Income. Interest income is recopnized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account
the effective yield on the asser,

FPracessing Fees. Processing fees are recognized at the time the Joan contract was agreed with the
borrowers Lo the extent of the cost incurred for processing of the loans extended.

Penaliies. Penalties are recognized based on a certain percentage of monthly amortizations that
were collected beyond due date,

Other income. Income from other sources is recognized when earned.

Expenses Hecognition

Lupenses are recognized in profil or loss when there iz a decrease in future economic henefit
related to a decrease in an assel or an increase in a lability that can be measured relisbly.
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Finance Costs. Finance costs represent the cost of money used in operations, It is recognized as
incurred using the effeclive interest rale method.

Emplovee Benefits

Short-term Benefits. The Company provides short-term benefits 1o its employees in the form of
basic 13th month pay, bonuscs, employer's share on government contribution, and other
short-term benefits. Shori-tenn employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiseounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Aetirement Benefits,  The Company has an unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit plan
covering all qualified employees. The retirement benefits cost is detenmined using the projected
vnit credit method which reflects serviees rendered by employees to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumplions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The Company recognizes scrvice costs, comprising of current service costs, past service costs,
gamns and losses on curtailiments and non-routine settlements and interest expense in profit or loss,
Interest expense is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the retivement liability or asset,

Past service costs are recognized in profil or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
or curtailment and the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income in the peried in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods,

The retirement liahility is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation. The
present value of the retirement liability is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related retirement Liability,

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
financial stalements do not differ malerially from the amounts that would be determined at the

reporting date,
Ineome Taxes

Cirrent Tax. Current tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation anthorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount s the
one that has been enaeted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred Tax, Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets
are recopnized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward benefits of any unused tax
credits from the excess of minimum corporale income tax (MCIT} over the repular corporate
income tax (RCIT) and any unused net operating loss carmyover (NOLCO}, to the extent that if is
probable that laxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and carry-forward benelits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, Deferred tax,
hiowever, is not recopnized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the ransaction, affects neither the
accounting profil nor taxable profit or loss,
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The carrying valve of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent thal it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deforred 1ax asset to be uilized, Urrecognized deferred tay assets are reasscssed at
each reporting date and arc recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profil will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and lizhilities arc measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply 1o the
period when the asset is realized or the lishility is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted

or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recogmized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a lepally enforceable right exists to offsel current
tex assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Earnings {Loss) per Share
Basic eamings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net inceme for the year attributable to

capital stockhiolders by the weighted average number of capital stock outstanding during the year,
with refroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and stock split.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calenlated by adjusting the weighted average number of capital
stock oufstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Where the earnings (loss) per share effcet of potential dilutive eapital stock would be anti-dilutive,
hasic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are stated at the same amount.

Related Parties

Parlies are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and cperating
decisions, Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or

comunon sipnificant influence,

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reparting
entity and a related party, regardless whether a price is charged.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company hzs a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
resull of & past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable estimate can he made of the amount of the

obligation.

Contingencics

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the
notes fo financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic henefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recogmized in the financial statements but
are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements when
material, Post year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial

slalenients when material,
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Sepment Reporting

An operating, segment is a component of the Company that enpages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relale to the
transactions with any of the Company's other components,

The Company’s operating segment consists only of lending activities which was winded down in
2015. As discussed in Note 1, the Company is in the process of applying with the SEC for the
change ol its principal purpose to a holding company.

3. Significant Judgmmts,-ﬁfmunling Estimates and Assumptions

PFRS requires management to exercise judgments and make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements. The judgment and estimates and assumptions
used in the financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the reporting date.  While the Company believes that the assumptions are
reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the sctual experience or sipnificant changes
in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the

fellowing judpments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Aveounting for Operating Lease - Company as a Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has an
operating lease agreement for its office space, The Company has determined that the risks and
benefits of ownership related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the
lease is accounted for as an operating lease.

Eent expense amounted to nil million in September 30, 2017 and 2016,

Determining Operating Segments. The Company determines and presents operating segments
based on the information that is internally provided 1o the BOD, As at December 31, 2016 and
2015, the Company has determined that it has no operating segment ather than being a holding

COmpany.

Estimates and Assemptinons

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, (hat have a sighificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed helow,

Estimating Allmvance for Impaivment of Receivables. The Company maintains allowance for
receivable impairment at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible
receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors thal
affect the eollectibility of the accounts, These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of
the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor's payment behaviour and known markef
factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtful of collection
and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and esiablishes a provision
considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

Impairmen| loss on loan receivable amounted to nil in September 30, 2007 and 2016 (see Note 5),

As at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company has not provided any allowancy
for impairment losses for note receivable. This assessment is undertaken each financial year
through examining the fmancial position of the counterparty and the markel in which the
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counterparty operales.

The carrying amount of note reccivable amounted to P139.3 million and $334.2 at September 30,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively (see Note 5.

Lstimating Useful Lives of Praperty and Equipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expecled to be available for
use. The Company annually reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based
on factors that include asset utilization, internal technicsl evalnation, technological chanpes,
environmental changes and anticipated use of the assets.

Assessing Impaivment of Praperty and equipmient. 'The Company assesses impaitment on property
and equipment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of

an asset may not be recoverahle.

The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an fmpairment review
include the following:

* significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating

resulis:

s sipnificant changes in the manner of wse of the acquited asseis or the strategy for overall
businezs; or

s significant negative industry or economic trends.

Estimating Retivement Liability. The determination of the Company’s retirement obligation and
costs 15 dependent on the selection by management of assumptions used by actuaries in calcnlating
such amounts. Those assumptions include, among olhers, discount rate and salary increase rate.

Actunl results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are recorded as addition to or
deduction from retirement lability and recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income,  One or mave of the actuarial assumptions may differ significantly and as a result, the
actuarial present value of the relirement obligation estimated as al reporting date may differ

significantly from the amount reporied,

Assessing Realizalility of Deferved Tax Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at
each reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no lenger probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset ta be utilized.

Deferred tax assets were not recognized on temporary differences and carry forward benefits of
unused NOLCO and MCIT as at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 becsuse the
management has assessed that there will be no sufficient taxable profits against which deferred 1ax

assels can be utilized.

4. Cash in Banks

Cash in hanks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income eamned amounted to
670 and B799 in September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 8),

5. Note Receivable

On May 5, 2015, the Company’s oulstanding loans receivables with carrving amount of
£344 .2 million, net of allowance for impairment lToss of #40.9 million, were exchanged for a five.
year note receivable with a neminal amount of 332.6 million, resulting to a loss of #1 1.6 million,
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The note receivable was initially recognized with a Day-l-differcnce of £11.9 million.
The Day-1-difference is being amortized over the fenn of the note of five years.

Movements of this aceount follows:

Note  September30,2017 2016
F320,768,206  £332639.733
(11.870,527)

320,769,200 320,769,206

Nominal ameount
Day-1-diflerence

Accretion of interest: 11
Balance at beginning of vear 13,418,376 6,640,454
Acerelion 5,155,508 6,777,922
Balance & end of year 18,573,884 13418376

B339,343,000 2334187 582

6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilitios

This account consists of}

September 30, 2017 2016
Due to a related party g P3,504,357 B2 044457
Aceroed expenses it 360,600
Siztutory payables 200 16,948

P3,504,557 F2.431,003

Accrued expenses include unpaid professional fees and other expenses that are expected to be
settled within the next financial year,

7. Related Party Transactions

Outstanding balance and transaction with related parties are as follows:

Related Party Under Common Control

Mature of Amount of Transaction Outstanding Balance
' Sepi. 30 Deeember  Sept. 30 Drecember
Transaction 2017 2016 2017 2016
Due to a related party
R¥M Business Advances for
Management Comp. working
capital P P RLO0O00D  B1,000,000
Bright Kindle Advances for
Resources & working
Investments, Inc. capyilsl 1,549,900 799,800 2,594,357 1,044 457
Total £1,549,900 P7OG.R00 PI,594,357 2,044,457

Outstanding balance which is included in “Acerued expenses and other current liahilities™ sceount
is nonmierest-bearing, payable on demand and settlement oceurs in cash,

Kev Management Personnel
Compensation of key management personnel consistz of short-term henefits amounting 0 nil

in September 30, 2017 and 2016,
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8, Interest Income
This aceount consists of:
Note _ September 30, 2017 September 30, 2016
Accretion 5 B5, 155,507 -
Cash in banks 4 6710 701
B5,156,177 #7901
9. Expenses
This zecount consists of:
Nine months ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016
2m7 2016
Taxes and licenses £492,292 #3500
PSE fees 288,960 283,360
Professional fees 123,200 380,559
Ouiside services 9,607 113,800
Directors fee 60,000 82,026
Representation 5,000 41,500
Communication and utilities 4 15,000
Others 72,963 6,540
PF1,133,112 P23 2R
Three months ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016
2017 2016
Directors fee 30,000 P-
Onizside services - 35,600
(ihers 37875 3,250
Po7.875 35,850
10.. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:
September 34, 2017 September 30, 2016
MNetincome (loss) P4,023.065 (PRI 584)
Weighted average number of common
shares 261,824,002 261,824,002
Loss per share — basicanddiluted P0.02 (P0.004)
There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential commoen shares that occurred
subisequent to the reporting dates,
11. Vinaneial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that syslematicolly view the risks thal could prevent
the Company from achieving ifs objectives, These policies are intended to manage risks identified
in suech a way that opportunities to deliver the Company's objectives are achieved,  The
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Company's risk management takes place in the context of duy-to-day operations and normal
business processes such as strateyic and business plamning. Management has identified each risk
and is responsible for coordinating and continuausly improving risk slratewies, processes and
measures in accordance with the Company's established business objectives.

Financial Risks

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash in banks, note receivable and acerued
expenses and other current labilities {excluding statutory payahles), which arise directly from its
operitions, The main risks arising from the use of these finsncial instruments are credit risk and
liguidity risk, Management reviews and epproves the policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarized below.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation, The Company’s exposure lo credit risk arises primarily

from cash in banks and note receivahle,

Credit Qualify. Credit risk arising from the inability of eounterparty to meet the terms of the
Company's financial instrument is generally limited to the amoum, i any, by which the
counterparty’s obligations exceed the obligation of the Company, With respect to credit risk
arising from the Company's financial assets the Company's exposure to credit tisk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal o the carrying values of these

mstruiments,

The aging analyzes of financial assots are as follows:

September 301, 2017
Past Due Bul Not
Neither Past Impaired  Past Due
Due Nor  Less Than And
Impuired 30 Days 31-60 Days  Empaired Total
Cash in banks P356,111 B P f P3i56,111
Nole receivable 339,343,000 - - — 339,343,090
P334.699,201 P i #- F130,699,201
2016
: Past Due But Not
Neither Past Impaired  Past Duc
Due Nor Less Than And
Impaired 30 Days 31-60 Davs  Impaired Total
Cash in banks 324,502 B R P~ P3I24S02
Mote receivable 334,187,582 - - - 334,187,582
PI34,512 084 B - £ #2334 512084

*Excluding cash on hand

September 30, 2017

Neither Past Due Nor

Impaired Past Due and
Standard  Past Due B
High Grade Grade Not lmpuired Impaired Total
Cash in banks BiS6,111 E P P- Fi50,111
Notereceivable 339,343,090 - - — 339,343,090
~ P339.699,201 = P P $339,609,20]
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2016

Meither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due and
Standard  Past Due But
High Grade Grade Mot Impaired Impaired Total
Cash in banks B124 502 - i £- 2124502
Mote receivahle 334,187 582 = - - 334187582
P334,512,084 - P- B P334.512,084

Cash in banks are entered into with reputable financial institutions duly approved by the BOD.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity rigk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial
obligations when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maimaining

sufficient cash to mect all foresecahle cash needs,

The carrying amount of the accrued and other current linhilities (excluding siatulory payahles) as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015 represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows and iz pavable

on demand.

Fair Value Measurement
Set out below s a comparison by categary of carrying values and fair values of the Cotnpany's

financial instruments that are carried in the financial slatements:

September 30, 2017 2018
Carrying Carrying
Valuc Fair Value Walue Fair Vaolue
Financial Assets
Cash in banks P356,111 B356,111 2324 502 2324502
Nole receivable 339,343,000 339,343,000 334187582 346,153,126

339,699,201 P339,609.201 P334,512,084 346,477,628

Financial Liabilities
Accrued and other current
linhilities* B1,504.257 B3,504 357 P2414,0587 P2.414,057

“Excluding staniory payables amounsing to 2200 and £16,948 as at September 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2016, respectively.

Cash in Banks and Accrved and Other Current Liabilities. The carrying values of cash in bunks and

accrued and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due fo the shorl-lerm nature of
the transactions. The fair value measurement of current financial assets and liabilities is elassified

as Level 3 (significant uncbscrvable inputs).

Note Receivable. The fair value of the Company’s note receivable was computed using the credif
adiusted risk-free rate of 3.67% 1o 3.90%, a5 al September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,

respectively.

12.

Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability 10 continue a=
a going concern and 1o provide an adequate retum to shareholders by creating products and
services commensurate with the level of risk. The Company manages ifs capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the

15| Mape



capital structure, the Company may return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or convert
related party advances to an equity componeni item.

The Company monitors its capital nsing the debt to equity ratio, which is the total Jizhilities
divided by the total equity.

There has been no change made in the objeetives, policies and process in Septemsber 30, 2017 and
2016,

16|Pame
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4. Exact name of issuer as speciied in jts charter AG Finance Incorporated

Metro Manila, Philippines 6. (SEC Use Onhy}

5.
Province. Country or other jurisdiclion of Indusiry Clessification Code:
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Philippine Stock Exchange Common Shares
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Yes [X] Mo [ ]

13 The aggregats markel valus of the voling stock hels by non-afiiliates iz 76644 701 shares
representing 30.0% of the outstanding cormmon shares is 8242 707 12500 comauted on the
bass ol the clasing price as of 21 March 2016 of P3.09 ser share,
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Business

Overview

AG Finance, Incorporated ("AGF” or the "Company”) was arganized in the Fhilippines on
December 14, 2001,  The Company is initially registered with the Securitiee and
Exchange Commission (SEC) to operate as a financing company and is governed by the
Repubic Act (R.A.) No. 8556, The Financing Company Act of 1998,

The Company is one of the major players in the microfinance and consumer leans ind Lstry
serving the financial needs of Filipinos hare and abroad.

Over the years, AG Finance has built its reputation in the market delivering its unigue
personalized services with superior fiexibility, productivity and efficiency. The Company
aims fo be one of the premier financing institulions meeting the diverse necds of its OFW
Loan and Salary Loan markets by offering the best terms of credit, efficient service, and
procucts that are suiled to its clients' neads,

The Company initially has an authorized capital stock of B10.0 million divided into 10.0
million common shares with a par value of ®1.00 per share. Due fo continuous growth and
expansion of the Company, a series of capital infusion were made by the shareholders in
2006 and 2008. On August 24, 2006 the Company increased its authorized capital stock
to #30.0 million divided into 30.0 million common shares, of which 20.0 miflion commor
shares were subscribed and paid-up. Subsequently, on June 16, 2009, AG Finance
increased its authorized capital stock to P75.0 million divided inte 75.0 million common
shares which were fully subscribed and paid -up.

On June 28, 2012, the Company's BOD and stockholders approved the: (I} application for
increase in its authorized capital stock to PS50.0 millon divided into 550.0 million shares
with a par value of 1 per share and (i} declaration of stock dividends amaunting to PE5.6
million or 65.6 million shares at 1 par value.

The Company's share of stock were listed in the Philppine Stock Exchange {PSE) on
August 13, 2013, 1he total number of shares listed in the PSE s 261 824,002 shares.

On March 6, 2015, the Board of Directors (EOD) approved the change of the Company's
principal purpose to a holding company, including investment in mining and smelting
operalions as secondary purpose.

On June 26, 2015, the company disclosed that, on June 25, 2015, M. Tony C. King and
his family. sold to RYM Business Managemenl Corporation their 183,276,801 eommon
shares or 70% of AG Finance through a block sale for B280.00 million or approximately #
1.53 per share.

On June 30, 2015, the Company ceasad ils lending activilics,

The Company's regislered office is Uni 22054 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchznge
Center, Exchange Road. Ortigas Cenler Pasig City. On June 26, 2015 and December
17, 2015, the Board of Directors and shareholders approved the change of Principal
address to 16" Floor Cititower Condominiurn, 8741 Paseo de Roxas Makali City subject
to approval of the SEC,



Principal Business Activities

The Company inilially provides worry-free short-term, unsecured credit faciliies to
permanaent rank and file employees of reputable medium-sized companies in the

Fhilippines.

During the special meeting of the stackholders of the Company held April 17, 2018,
stockholders approved the amendment of Corporation's principal purpose to that of
helding company and it added a secondary purpose which is to engage in the business of
mining and smelting in preparation of the corporaton's plan te diversify and expand its

business.

Reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant
amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business

On June 1, 2015, all of the Company's remaining properly anc equipment were sold at
ila carrying amount,

Products and Services Offered
The Company was previously providing shar-term, unsecurad credit faciities to
permanant rank-and-file employees of medium-sized companies in the Philppines and

provide loans to OFWs for deployment overseas needing immediate funds to support their
initial expenses in the country of deployment.

On June 20, 2015, the Company ceased its lending activities since the stockbolders
approved the amendment of Corporation's principal purpose to that of halding company
and il added a secondary purpose which is to engage in the business of mining and
smelting in preparation of the corporation's plan to diversify and expand its business.
Sources and availability of raw materials and the names of principal suppliers

This is not applicable to the Company.
Transaction with and/or dependence on related parties
This is not applicable to the Company.

Patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises, concessions, and royalty
agreements held

This is not applicable to the Company.
Government approval of principal products or services

This is not applicable to the Company.

Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business

The Company was previously governed by Republic Act No, 8556, The Financing
Company act of 1998, It has complied with the requirements of existing laws 1o engage

in the business,
The Corporation’s business is not affected by existing or probable government

- K-



regulations,

Amount spent on research and development activities

The Company does not have research and development activities.
Cost and effects of compliance with environmental laws

This is not applicable to the Company.

Employees

Starting July 2015, asids from the key managemant officers, all of the Cerporation's
personnel performing the Company's daily operations are being outsourced,

Item 2. Properties

On June 1, 2015, all of the Company's remaining property and equipment were sold at its
carrying amount,

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company is nol involved in any legal praceedings.

item 4, Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
The Company submitted the foliowing matters to a vate of the sacurity holders during

the 2016 Annual Meeting:

AGENDA:

1) Call to Order

2) Certification of Quorum

3) Approval of Minutes of the previous meaeting

4) Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Stalements
5) Ratification of Management's Acts

6} Election of Direclors

71 Appointment of External Auditer

2} Other Matters

8) Adjournment

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 5. Market for Issuer's Commen Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Informatijon

The commeon shares of the Company was listed last August 13, 2013 in the Philippine
Stock Exchange. The high and low prices of the Company's share for each guarter from
2014 o 2016 were as follows:



ED‘M First 3.60 265

| Second 3.40 2,50
Third 5.28 2.79

| Fourth 4.50 4.00
| 2018 First 7.88 3.70
Second .40 6,40

Thircd 7.65 £.20

Fourth 3.32 250

2010 First 3.60 1.9G
Second 4 60 2.74

Third 3.94 3.24

Fourth 3.865 3.15

AGF was only listed on the Exchange on 13 August 2013.

As of March 31, 2017, the closing price of the Company's comman shares was £2.33 per
share, As of March 31, 2017, 74358625 common shares are held by the public,
representing 28.40% of the Company's outstanding shares.



Holders

The number of shareholders as of December 31, 2016 is 12. The top stockholders of the
Company as of December 31, 2016 were as follows:

| FPCD Nominee Corp. {Filiping) 261,659,136
PCD Nominee Carp. (Nen-Filipino) 206,500
Joselyn C. Tiu 18,747

| Marjorie Villanueva 18,747

10,001

| Leila E. Jorge
Felisa D. King 8,747

Remegio C. Dayandan 1,000
FRamon M. Sanics 1,000
CArsenio K. Sebizl Jr 100
Owen Nathaniel S AU ITF: Li Marcus Au 20
Feter Kho 2
| Daleson Uy P
| Total - 261,824,002

On June 26, 2015, the registrant disclosed o the Philippine Stack Exchange (PSE) ard
Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) that an June 25, 2015, Mr. Teny O, King and
hig family sold to RYM Business Management Corporation 183,276,801 common shares
or 70% of AG Finance through block sale for P280.00 million or approximately P1.53 per

share,
Dividends

Cn March 25, 2015, the Buard approved a cash dividend declaration of P0.47 per share
or a tolal of approximately 12306 million. The cash dividends was paid on April 24,

2015,
- Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to a variety of finansial risks in relation to its financial
instruments. The Company's risk management aclivaly focuses on securing the
Company's short-to-medium-term cash flows by minirmizing the exposure to financial
markets. The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes nor does it write oplions.

1. Market Risk

The Company is exposed to markel risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its operating

and invesiing activitiss.
&, Foreign currency rigk

Most of the Company's transactions are cartied out in Fhilippine pesos, ils
functional currency. Exposures {o currency exchange rales arise from the
Company's loans to OFWs, which are primarily denominated in Uniled Stales
(U.5.) dollars. The Company also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash



To mitigate the Company’s expasure to foreign currency risk. non-Philippine
peso cash flows are maonitored.

Interest rate risk

There were no transactions in 2016 that are subject to interest rate risk. All
financial assets and liabilitivs are non-interest bearing or has fixed interest rate.

Oeerational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising frem systems failure, human error, fraud
or external evenis, When controls fail lo perform, operational risks can cause
damage to reputation, or may lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect
to eliminate all operational risks, but through & contral framawork and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage
this risk. Controls include effective segrepation of duties, access, autherization
and reconciliation procedures, stafi training and assessmenl processes,
including the maintenance of intarnal audit.,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its cbligaticn. The Company's exposure to credit
risk arises primarily from cash in banks and note receivable.

The Company continuously monitors defaults of borrowers and other
counterparlies, identified either individually or by groun, and incarporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost,
external credil ratings andfor reports on customers and other counterparties are
obtained and used. The Company's policy is to deal only with ereditvarthy
counterpariies,

Mone of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements, except for the cash in bank. Cash in bank is insured by the
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of
FS00,000 for every depositor per banking institution.

The Company is not exposed to any significant credit exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparlies having similar characleristics. The
Company manages credit risk by setting limits for individual borrowings, and
group of borrowers and industry segments. The Company maintains a general
policy of avoiding excessive expesure in any particular sectar of the Philippine
economy. The Company actively seeks to increase its exposura in industry
sectors which it believes to possess atlractive growth opportunities.

Conversely, it aclively seeks to reduce its exposure in industry sectors whare
growth potential is minimal. Although the Company's loar portfolio is composed
of fransactions with OFWs, the results of operations and financial condition of
the Company may be adversely affected by any downturn in this sector as well
as in the Philippine economy in genera!l,



3. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wili not be able to settle or mest its
financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is lo ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meel ils liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's

reputation.
Item €. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Easis of Financial Statements presentation 2016 and 2015

Easis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared using the historical cost
basis and are presented in Philippine Peso, the Company's funclional currency.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Reporting standards (PFRS).

Management's Discussion _and Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of
Operations

The following management’s discussion and anzlysis of the Company's financial condition
and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Company's auditad
financial statements. including the related noles, contained in this repart. This report
contains forward-looking slatements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company
cautions investors that its business and financial performance is subject to substantive
risks and uncertainties. The Company's actual resulis may differ materially from those
discussed in the forward-looking statements as a resull of various factors, including,
without limitation, those set aut in "Risk Facters." In evaluating the Company's business,
investors should carefully consider all ¢f the information contained in "Risk Factors."

Resulits of operations
In million

Audiled Increase{Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount %
Income 6.78 35.22 (28.44) (B0.75)
Expenses 1.65 2016 {18 51} (©1.82)
Other Income (Charges) - {23.64} (23.64) {100}

Income decreased by P28.44 million or 80.75% as compared last year, In Juna 2015, the
Company ceasaed ifs londing activities which resuled to lower interest income.

Expenses decreased by 18,51 million or 81.82% due to ceasation of lending activitios,
Significant changes in the expense accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016
versus the same period lasl year are as follows:



+ Decrease in Salaries and employee benefits by ®6.44 million or equivalent to 100.00%
due to termination of all employees on June 2015,

e Decrease in Taxas and licenses by P4.93 million or equivalent to 100.00% as a result
of ceasing the lending activilies. The decrease pertains mainly to the tax in relation to
lending transaction such as Documentary stamp tax and gross receipt tax.

e Decrease in Rent by #1.48 miliion or equivalent to 100.00% due to the ceasation of
lending activities.

Other charges decreased by £23.64 due to last year's loss on sale of loans recevable
of #11.64 milion and finance cost of #1487 million.

Financial Position

Audited Increase{Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount Yo
{its PhP Millions)
Assets $336.79 PI20T75 7.04 213
Liabilities 2.89 0.51 2.38 46667
Stockholders' Equity 333.80 32924 4 66 1.42

Assets

The total assets of the Company increazed by 7.04 million or 2.14% from P329.75 million
as of Dacember 31, 2015 to P336.78 million as of December 31, 2016, The increase was
mainly due to the net effect of the following:

» Cash increzsed by F0.26 million or 428.28% mainly due to advances received from

affiliates.

» Note receivable increased by P6.78 million or 2.07% due to the accretion of intarast
income

Liabilities

- As of December 31, 2016, the tota! liabilitizs of the Company increased by P2.38 million
or equivalent to 463.36% from P0.51 million as of December 31. 2015 as compared to
F2.90 million as of December 31, 2016, The increase was due to the following:

= Current Liabilities increased by ®1.92 million or 373.01%, mainly due to increase in
payable from affiliate by P1.25 million,

» Noncurrent Liabilities increased by B0.46 million due to deferred tax liability arising
from accretion of note receivable.

Stockholders’ Equity

As of year-end 2016, the stockholders' equity increesed by P4.66 million from
F320.24 milion as of December 31, 2015 to P233.90 miflion as of Dacember 31, 2015,
The increass was attributahle to the net income of #4.66 milion in 2016,

11 -



Explanations for the material changes in the Company's accounts between 2015
and 2014 are as follows:

Results of operations

Interest income decreazed by P30.94 million or 57.16% as comparad last year, In June
2015, the Company ceased its lending activilies which resulied 1o lower interest income.

Expenses decreased by P12.69 milion or 38.64% due to ceasation of lending activities.
Significant changes in the expense accounts for the year ended December 31, 2015
versus the same period last year are as follows:

« Decrease in Salaries and employes benefits by P4.63 million or equivalent to 41.62%
due to termination of employees on Juns 2015,

« Decrease in Taxes and licenses by £2.19 million or equivalent to 30.72% as a result
of ceasing the lending activities. The decrease pertains mainly to the tax in relation to
lending transaction such as Documentary stamp tax and gross receipt tax.

= Decreased in Depreciation expanss by #1.88 million or 21.75% mainly due to disposal
of property and equipment,

s Increase in Rent by #1.20 milion or 424.19% because the Company is renting its
office space at PSE Centre, Pasig City.

Other charges increased by P23.11 ig attribuiable to less on sale of loans receivable of
#11.64 million and finance cost of 11.87 million.

Financlal Position

Assets

The total assels of the Company decreased by P146.18 million or 30.71% from $475.51
million as of December 31, 2014 to #323.75 million as of December 31, 2015, The
decrease was mainly due to the nat effect of the follewing.

« Cash and cash equivalents decreasad by 2984 42 million or 99.98% mainly due to
payment of dividends to its stockholders and paymeant of payables,

= OnMay 5, 2015, all of the Company's putstanding receivables with carrying amaunt
of F332.60 were exchange for a five year note receivahle with fair vaiue of #327.41

millicn.
» Other current assets increased by P2.06 milion or 931.96% is attributable to

creditalle tax on current income tax,
+ Property and equipment decreased by 047 million or 100.00% due to disposal of

property and equipment at its carrying amacunt,

Liabilities
As of December 31, 2015, the total liabilities of the Company decreased by P13.45 million

or eqguivalent to 96.32% from B13.897 million as of December 31, 2014 as compared to
B151 milion as of December 31, 2015, The decrease was due to the fallowing:

»  Current Liabilities decreased by #10 .26 million ar 85.23%. mainly due to payment of
2014 income tax pavable of BE.25 million and payment of accrued expenses and other
current liabilities of F4.01,



s Non current Liabilities decreased by P3.19 millian due to payment of retirement
benefit liability to terminated employees.

Stockholders™ Equity
As of year-end 2015, the stockholders’ equity decreased by B132.71 miliion from F461.85

million as of December 31, 2014 to P322 .24 milion as of December 31, 2015, The
decrease was attributable to the payment of cash dividend of ®123.06 million and net

operating loss of #9.65 million.

Material changes te the Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 {increase/decrease of 5% or more]

Cash
Cash increased by 17.16% to P294 48 milion a5 of December 31, 2014 from P251.34

million as of December 31, 2013, The increase was mainly dus to sale of assets and
increase in collection.

Froperty and equipment
Froperty and equipment decreased by B5.84% to P0.47 million as of December 31, 2014

from ®14 89 million as of December 31, 2013, The decrease was primarily dug to the
Company's disposal of transportation eguipment,  condeminium ard condominium
improvement, amounting to P12.9 million net of depreciation for the year amounting to

P1.62 million.

Other assets
Deferred tax asset Deferred tax asset increased by 68.28% to £13.22 million as of

December 31, 2014 from #7.81 million as of December 31, 2013, The increase was mainly
due to tax impact of impairment loss recorded during the year.

Advances to employees and clients
Advances to employees and clients decreased by 73.21% to #0.18 milion as of December

- 31, 2014 from POGT million as of Dacember 31, 2013, The decrease was dua o
liquidation of employees advances at the end of the year.

Miscellaneous
Miscelanecus asset increased by 17.91% to P0.60 milhon as of December 31, 2014 from

FO0.51 million as of December 31, 2013, The increase was due to purchase of software.

Accrued expenses and other payables
Accrued expenses and cofher payables include urpaid utilities, professicnal fees,

retirement benefit obligations, withholding taxes and inlerest and olher expenses

Accrued expenses and other payables increased by 7.58% to P7.71 million as of
Decembear 31, 2014 from BT.17 million as of Decermber 31, 2013 The increase was dus
to addilional acerual of post-employment benelit obligation.

Income tax payable
Income tax payable increased by 52.65% to P8 25 millien as of December 31, 2014 from

F4.10 million as of December 31, 2013, The increase was primarily due {o gain from sale
of assels in the amount of P15.5 million,



Capital stock
Deposit for fulure stock subscription
On June 28, 2012, the Company's BOD and stockholders approved the application for

increase in the Company's authorized capital stock from P75 million divided into 75 million
shares of siock to F550million divided into 550 millien shares both with & par value of
#1.00 per share. On the same day, the Company's BOD approved the declaration of stock
dividends amounling to PE5.60 million to be issued out of the increase in authorized
capital stock. Out of the increase, B118.75 million worth of shares were subscribed and
partly paid in the form of cash and partly issued as stock dividends, On December 11,
2012 and December 14, 2012, the slockholcers subsoribed 1o addilonal shares by paying
cash amouniing to P5315 millon, &g of December 31, 2013, the amount of the
subecription paid by the stockholders are presented as part of Capilal Stock account in

the 20113 slatement of financial posilion.

Stock dividend distributable
On June 29, 2012, the Company's BOD approved the declaration of stock dividends

amounting to P§5,600,002 or 65,600,002 shares al P1 par valug, On February 13, 2013,
the SEC approved the Companys application for the increase in its authorized captal
stock, Porlion of the increase was subscribed in the form of cash and stock dividends.,
As of December 31, 2013, the amountl of the subscription paid in the form of stock
dividends by the stockholders are presenied as part of Capital Stock account in the 2013

statement of finanzial position,

Retained earnings
Retainec earnings increased by 33.56% to #138.30 million as of December 31, 2014 from

F103.55 million ag of December 31, 2013, The increase arised from the nelincoma after
tax of the company for the calendar year, amounting to #34 7 million,
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Key perfermance indicators are listed below;

The key performance indicators presented below were selecled lo help the management
of AG Finance in evaluating the Company's profitability, growth, effliciency, and financial
stability, measures that will assist in the generation of future plans.

AL SR S I S ek i e T T T R e
Met Income F4 G50 085 (F9,818,754)
Current essets 2,603,939 2,340,362
Total assets 326,781,521 320 750,022
Curren( liabilities 2,431,005 515,945
Total liabilitizs 2,595,359 513,845
Stockholders' Equity 333 BOG 162 329,236,077
No. of commaon shares outstanding 261,824,002 261,824,002

. _ 2016 2015
Current ratio ! 1.07 455
Book value per share 2 1.28 1.28
Dbl ratio ® G.01 0.00
Profit per share * 0.01 (0.04)
Return on assets ® 0.01 {0,02)

Mole:

Current assets { current liabilities

Stockholder's Equity / Total outstanding number of shares
Total Liabilities / Stockholder's Equity

Met Income { Loss ) / Total outstanding number of sharas
Nel income [ average total assels

:xh-b-'.,-:Mn—n

Item 7. Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of the Company are filed as part of this SEC17-4 as
“Annex A

Item B. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

There were no disagreements wilh the auditors on any matter of accounting principles or
praclices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure,



PART lil - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ftem 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of seven [ 7 ) members and shall hold
office for a term of one year, or upon the election of its successors. The Board is
rasponsible for the Company's overall mission, vision and strategy, management of the
Company, and the preservation of the Company's assets and properlies, For a person o
be eligible to be elected as a director of the Company, il is necessary that he or she is a
registerad owner of at least one voting share of the Company.

The Company's Board elected during the most recent annual stockholders' meeting held
on December 17, 2015 and are to serve until the next annual shareholders' meeling or
until their successors have been duly elected and qualified.

Niimb i e e e S e
DIRECTORS |
| ! |
Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. 62 | Filipino | Director f Chairman of the Board |
i Anthony M. Te 46 | Filipino | Director / Vice Chairman i
Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr. &0 Filipino President and Director |
| Manuel Lazara (81 . Filiping | Independent Director
Ge Lin 36 | Chinese | Independent Direclor |
Remegio C. Davanoayan Jr. | 36 Filipino | Directar
- Hermogene H. Real 61 | Filipino Director / Asst, Corp. Secretary
OFFICERS : i
| |
Folando 8, Santos | G& Filpino | Treasurer !
| Liane Madealyn Ching 34 | Filipino Corporate Secretary
Reuben F. Alcantara 33 | Filiping WP Marketing
Leddie D. Gutierrez 54 Filiping | VP Internal Audil =

Described below are relevant business experience and qualifications of each of the
Company's directors.and officers covering the past five years.

DIRECTORS:

Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara Jr. was elected Chairman and Director last June 25 2015 He
currently sits as President of Marcventures Holding, Inc. (M1} and presently Vice
Chaimman and Directer of MMDC, MHI wholly owned subsidiary. He also serves as
Director and President of Bright Kindle Resources, Inc. Mr. Alcantara is the President of
Financial Risk Resclutiong Advisory, Inc. He has bean a Director of Benguel Corp, since
Movember 2008, He served as Senior Vice Fresident and Head of Corporaie &
Institutional Banking at HEBC. He was elecled Presidenl and Chief Executive officer of
FPhilipping Bank of Communications (FECom) in Manila Phiippines from 2000 to 2004, In
addition, he served as Executive Vice President of the Corporate Banking Group of
Eguitable PC| Bank (EPCIB} from 1981 to 2000. He served as Direclor of Barkers
Association of the Philippines from 2000 to 2003 He also served at Bancom Finance
Corparation, PCI Bank, and Insular Bank of Asia and America (a Bank ol America alliliate)
from 1875 to 1881, Mr. Alcantara Jr is a Certified Public Accountant. He oblained his BSc
in Accountng and BE in Economics degrees from De La Salle University, graduating
magna cum faude, He also attanded the Special Stedies in International Banking at tha
Wharlon School, Universily of Pennsylvania,



Mr. Anthony M. Te. was elecled as Vice Chairman and Director in June 25, 2015 He is
currently Chairman of the Board of Asian Appraisal Company Inc., Amalgamated Project
Management Services, Inc., Asian Asset Insurance Brokerage Corp. and Profesional
Funding Services Inc. He serves as Chairman and Chigd Finance officer of Mactel
Corp. as Director and Trezsurer for Manila Standard Today Management Inc. and Director
fro Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation.  Mr Te is a licensed
solicitingofficial for Nen Life insurancewith Philipping Insurance Commission. He
previously sat as Director in the following companies:Balabac Rescurces & Holdings
Co., Inc. Commonwealth Savings and Loan Bank, EBECOM Haoldings, Inc. Equitakle PCI
Bank, MRC Allied Industries Inc., Oriental Petroleumn & Mineral Corp., PAL Holdings Inc.,
FGA Cars Inc., and Phoenix Energy Corp. He obtained his Bachelor of Arls in Business
Management from De La Salle University,

Engr. Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr. was elacted as President and Director in June 25, 2015, He
is the President and CEO of Marcventures Mining and Developrnent Corporalion { MMDC)
He graduated from Mapua Institute of Technology with a degres in Mining Engineering
and was previous president of the Philippine Mining Engineer's Socicty. He holds 40
years of mining experience, the longest was with Benguet Corporation where he rose to
Division Manager for Mining and Engineering and worked in the highly successful
Eenguet-Dizon Copper Mines.

Justice Manuel Lazare was elected Independent Directors in June 2015, He currently
sits as Director for Philippine Aldines Inc., (PAL), The Manila Hotel Corperation and Manila
Golf & Country Club, He is also the Chairman & CEO of Philippine Constitution
Association (PHILCOMNSA) and served as its President and Governar for faur terms from
the year 1981 to 2011, He sat as Director for PHILIA Development Center Inc., and is a
member of the Board of Advisor of Atenec Law School and Chairman of Agquila legis
Alumni Foundation, Inc,

Mr. Ge Lin(a.k.a. Gery Lam) was elected Independent Director in June 2015, He serves
as Director of Zhejiang Long Kai and LianYuGang and as Director and General Manager
for HYSS Holdings. Mr. Lam sal as Executive Director Philippine ZhacHeng Mining Co.,
itd. From the year 2005 to 2007,

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr. was elected as Diractor in December 2015, Her was
elected as Director of Bright Kindle Resources and Investment Inc. in March 2014, He
currently sits as Director and President of RYM Business Management Corporation and
the Philippine Manila Standard Publishing Inc. He was previously an associate of Dum lao
Moraleda Antonano and Tuvera Law Offices from February 2008 to March 2008, He was
also a Subjective Discovery Reviewer of Escaler and Company Inc.-LPO from May 2008
te March 2009, Atty, Dayandayan obtained his degrees in Bacheler of Arts major in
Faolitical Science from the University of San Carlos in 2001 and Bachelor of Laws from
San Beda College- Mendiola in 2007, He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2008,

Atty. Hermogene H. Real was elected as Directar in December 2016 and as Assistant
Corporale Secrelary in June 15, 2015, She serves as Director of Philippine
Collectivernedia Corporation (2008 o present). as Corporate Secretary of Benguet
Corporation {2000 to present) and Universal Re Condominium Corporation (1987 to 2008,
2010 to present), as Assislant Corporale Secretary of Dofiz Remedios Trinidad
Fomualder Medical Foundation, Inc. (1998 to present), Benguet Corp Micke! Mines, Inc.
{2008 to present), She is a lawyer in D5, Tantuico and Associates (1998 1o present), She
previously held the following positions: Chairman of the Board and President of Philippine
Collectivernedia Corporation (2008 {o 2010), Corporate Secretary of Trans Middle East
Fhis Eguities, Inc, (1856 to 2006); and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Equitable PO
Bank, Inc. (2008-2006),

e A



OFFICERS:

Mr. Rolando 5. Santos was elscted Treasurer in June 25, 2015, He also serves as
Treasurer and concurrently holds the position of Senior Vice President for Finance and
Administration of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. He also serves as Treasurer for MMDC,
Bright Kindle Resources and Investments, Inc,, and Bright Green Rezources Corp. He
was praviously the Branch head!/Cluster head of Branches for Banco De Gro from 2001
to 2013, Bank of Commerce from 1884 to 2001, Producers Bank of the Philippines from
1881 to 1884, and Far East Bank from 1872 and 1981, He oblained his degree in ES

Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected Corporate Secrelary in June 2015, Bhe
serves as General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Mareventures Holdings
Inc. and ite subsidiary, Marcveniures Mining and Development Corp. She sils as director
of Prime Media Holdings Inc. where she was previously appointed as Corporate Secretary
in 2013. She provides legal consultancy services to PLOT Global (Philippines) Corp. Aty
Ching was an associate of Ocampo & Manalo Law Firm from March 2010 to June 20173,
She obtained her degrees in Bacheler of Secondary Education major in Ecenomics and
Eachelor of Arts major in Psychology from De La Balle University-Manila graduating
Henorable Mention. She passed the Licensura Examination for Teachers in 2004 She
worked as a Research Analyst of the Mergers and Acquisilions, Asia Pacific Region
Division of Thomson [Philippines) Inc. (now Thomson Reuters), She oblained her
Bachelor of Laws from San Beda College-Mandiola in 2009 and was admitted to the

Fhilippine bar in 20140,

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara is the Vice President for Marketing. he is also VP Marketing,
Business Development, and Strategic Planning of Marcveniures Holdings Inc. since
September 2013, He is also the Company's Investor Relations Officer. He joinad the
company in December 2015, He previously served as Relationship and Credil Offizer for
Security Bank and has had sfints in Corporate Banking in Bank of Commerce and

Maybank Philippines,

Leddie D. Gutierrez was appointed as VP Internal Audil in June 2015. He is a Cerlified
Fublic Accountant and has held key positions in internal audit, corporate services and
compliance and control in 1985, Mr. Gutierrez is currently the Vice President [or Audit and
Fisk Management of Marcvenlures Mining and Developmenl Corp. { MMDC), He served
as Division Head { Assistant Vice President) of Stralegic Support Division under
Institutionzl Banking Sector of Metropolilan Bank and Trust Company, where, since joining
in November 2011 as Compliance and Contral Officer { Senior Manager), he oversaw
IBES's compliance to policies, procedures and regulations set by the bank, BSP and
regulalory agencies and led systems and process improvements for the group. From April
2005 io Cctober 2011, Mr, Gulierrez served as Head of Internal Audil of PLRT Global
Corporation {PGC}, a subsidiary and international marketing firm of PLDT Co. In this role,
he carried out operational, informalion technology, financial, nelwork and compliance
audits of PGC. Mr. Gulierrez is a graduate of Universily of the Easl.

Identify Significant Employees

Mo single person is expected to make significant contribution to the business since the
Company considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the
success of the Company.
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Family Relationships

fr. Isidrs C. Alcantara Jr,, Chairman, and Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara, Vice President for
Marketing, are family.

tnvolvement in Certain Legal Proceedings of Directors and Senior Management

To the knewledge of the Company, there has been no occurrence of any events during
the past 5 years up to present which are material io an evaluation of the akility and
Integrity of any director, any person nominated to become diractor, executve officer or

control person of the Company.
Item 10. Executive Compensation

The foliowing are the Company’s CEQ and four most highly compensated employees for
the yvear ended 2016 is follows:

' |Gm=|r'r*an 0! tne Baard i e |
Wice Chairman :
Prasident and Director

| iSld"D C ;—‘krcentara i
Anthony M. Te
Arsenio K. Sebial, Jr.

Manuel Lazaro independent Direclor

Ge Lin Independent Director .
Remegio C. Dayandayan Jr. Director i
Rolando S. Santos Treasurer '

Diane Madelyn Ching ' Corporate Secretary
Hermogene H. Real | i Asst. Corp. Secretary

Reuben F. Alcantara VP Marketing
WP Internzl Audit

| Leddie O. Gutierrez

The table below summarizes the aggregate compensation of the Company's CEQ and
the four most highly compensated employees, as well as the aggregate compensalion
paid 1o all directors and officers as a group for the years, 2014, 2015 and 2016,

<14 -

President | 2014 1 3461 012 | 268125] 184,208 | 13,345 |
and Top 5 2015 1,515,757 | 3,820,843 | 5,336,600 |

| Executive | 2016 199.5?3,__ 199 673 |
CHicers as | e ) ]
group 2017 N
narmed estimated | - E )

L above -
All Other I = N ]

- 2014 , !

Officers 5381520 | 478,741 294,555 | £,104,825

I and 2015 1515767 | 3820843 - 5,336,600
Directors, ™15 140,640 68 74084968
as & groudp _— izt
unnamed |

2017 - :
I—L_ | . I___ S




Compensation of Directors
Standard Arrangement

Other than payment of reasonable per diem as may be determined by the Board for every
meeting, there are no standard arrangement pursuant to which directors of the company
are compensaled directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a directar,

Other Arrangement

There are ne other arrangements pursuant te which directors of the company are
compensaled directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director,

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangements

There are no special contracts of employment between the Company and the named
directors and executive officers, as well as compensatary plans or arrangements.

There are no arrangements for compensation to be received by the officers from the
Company in the event of a change in control of the Company.

Warrants and Options Outstanding

There are no outslanding warrants or options held by the Company’s directors, named
senior management and all officers and directors as a group.

ltem 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following persons own at least five percent (8%) of the Company's oulstanding
common shares;

Business ‘ [
fanagement ‘

- Corp | £

[TOTAL T Tvezmesn7000%]
Other than the persons identified above, there are no beneficial owners of mare than 5%
of the Company's outstanding capital stock that are known to the Company,
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Security Ownership of Directors and Officers

TIsidro C. AlcantaraJr. | Flipino. |

| PP (Direct) 100 &
 Common | Anthony M. Te Filipine | {Direct) 100 0.00%
- Common Arsanio K. Sebial Jr. Filiping | (Direct) 100 0.00% |
Common | Manuel b, Lazaro | Filpine | . 0.00%
| B {Direct) 100
Commaon Ge Lin (a.k.a.Gery Lam) Filiping | {Direct) 100 0.00%
Common | Remegio Dayandayan Jr. | Filipino | (Direct)  1.000 0.00%
Commaon Hermogene H. Real Filiping | {Direct] 100 0.00%
TOTAL L | (Direct} 1,600 0.00%

Voting Trust Holders of 5% Or More

The Company has no voting trust agreement or any other similar arrangement which
may result in a change in contral of the Company.

Changes in Control

On June 26, 2015, the registrant disclosed to the Philipping Stock Exchange "PSE" and
Securilies and Exchange Commission "SECT thal on June 25, 2015 Mr. Tany O. King, and
his family, controlling shareholders of AGF have sold to RYWM Business Manzgement
Corporation, 183,273,601 common shares or 70% of AG Finance through a block sale on
25 June for PhpZ80.00 Million or approximately Phpt,5278 per share.

ltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Faries are considered to be related if one parly has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
confrol the other party or exercise signifcant influence over the ather party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are glso considered to be related if they are
subject to commen control or cammon significant influence aver the ather party in making
financial amd oparating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to comman conirel o commen significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals or corporate entities. Transaclions between related parties are on arm’s length
basis in & manner similar to transactions with non-related parties.

During the last three years, there were no transactions or series of similar transactions
with or involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries in which a direclor, execuive
offizer, neminee for election as a direclor or stockholder owning len percent {10%) or more
of fetal outstanding shares and members of their immediate family, had or is to have a
cirect or indirect materizl interest,
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PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ltern 13. Please refer to attached ACGR,

FART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ltem 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

{a} Exhibits

The audited financizl statements of the Company are filed as part of this SEC17-A as
“Annex AT

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

tems reported under SEC Form 17-C for the year 2016:

Event Reported " PERTRE EETRRNE

| _Date of Report ]
(1) | Apeit 14, 20706 Results of Board Mesting fas! April 08, 2016
Charnge in Corporale Contact Details anddor Websiic
- Peslponameni of gannual stackhalders' meoiing
i2) | August 31, 2018 Resignation of Mr. Raman M. Sanlos &5 Director
“_fi‘ Decembar 15, Resulls of Organdzaltional  meeling of BOOD and Anna!
2016 Stockholders Mesiing

SpP



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sestion 17 of the Code and Section 147 of the Camporation
this report is signed on behall of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly

Code,
authorized, in the City of
ity o cun_,‘_,_,,___* 4. ﬂT.‘
HAKATICITY
R
gé{ C‘r} /‘-/{_ .'..z K‘ﬂ-.;._
Isidro C. Alean:are, Arsenio-K-Sebial, Jr.
Chairman / President

J; i | -{r-l"-

Fofando S, Santos
Trezsurer

APR 19 2677

SUESCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day af
afiiant{s) exhibiting to their evidence of identity, as follows:
NAMES Competent DATE OF ISSUE FLACE OF ISSUE
Evidence of
identity [TIN})
123-371-185
136-800-795
127-551-054

Isidro C, Alcantara, Jr,
Arsenc K, Sebial, Jr.
Rolando 5. Sanlos

-3'!\
AT VI e
r'-f;"l' W h LEW

§E A

; etary Public

Doc. No. Yl/r

Page No. & 6 .

Eook Mo, _;‘_27_}

Series of 2017,
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Management of AG Finance Incorporated is responsible for the preparation and
farr presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
munagement delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to comtinue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable matiers
related to going concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Direclors is respansible in overseeing the Company's financial reporting
PraCess.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockbolders or members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co.. the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, has audited the financial staterments of the
company i accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. and in its report to the
stockholders or members. has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit,

1 o 2

Signature _‘QE;(;’; 0'- (l':é(__ )

ISIDRO O, AL }';"LETARA, JI.
Chairman o

Signature

y
ARSENIQKSEBIAL, JR.
Presideny”

Signature

ROLANDO SAANTOS
Treasurer

Signed this _3%  day of _Apn| Zoi3
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Ihe Management of AG Finance Incorporated is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein for
the vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internzl control as
management determines is necessary to enehle the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or ervor,

In preparing the financial staiements, mansgement s responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the poing concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules artached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders ar members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co.. the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, has audited the financial statements of the
company i accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
compietion of such audil

Signature ﬁéﬁ (]"ﬂ{

ISIDRO €. ALCANTARA, JR.

Chairman 7 . g
- [
Stanaturz _ ¥
ARSENIO K. SEBIAL, JR,
D) ol ' ] g
President : j?.' A, 4 _..Jf.},.
Signature . . : o
KOLANDOYS, SANTOS A ARG ' i
Treaszurer e e ==

Signed this 3% davor Aprl 2w
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Practitioner's Compilation Report

The Stockhalders ard the Board of Directors

AG Finance Incorporated

(A Subsidiary of RYI Busiiess Managemen! Corp.

Lint 22054 Last Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Fxchange Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

| heve compiled the accompanying financiai statements of AG Finance Incorperated

(# Subsidiary of RYM Business Managemen: Corp.} {or the Company) based on informatian
you have provided. These financizl slaternents comprise the statement of fmanzial positicn
of the Company as et Decamber 31, 2016, the statement of comprehensive income,
stalement of changes in equity and stalernent of cash fiows for the year then endad, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

| performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philipging Standard on Reiated
Senvices 4470 (Revised), Compilation Engagements

| have applied my expertise in accounting and financial reparting to assist you in the
preparation and presentation of these financizl statements in accordance with Phiippine
Fmancial Reporling Standards (FFRS). | have complied with relevan! ethical reguiremeants,
including prirciples of integrity, objectivity, professional compatence and due care,

These financial statemenis and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to
compile them are your respansibility.

Since & compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement. | am not reguired to
verify the accuracy or completenass of the information you provided to us to compile thess
tinancial statements Accordingly, | do not express an audit Cpinion or & review Soncluson
o whether these financial statements are preparad in accordancea with PFRS

LS

Vaehd Until December 31, 2057
BIF Accrediation Mo 068-D0E384-001-2018"
Vahd Untif Marcn 7, 2019
TN Moo 305-873-135-000
FTR Mo, GOTE643 ssued January 10, 2017
City of Manila

April 07, 2047
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

AG Finance Incorporated

Unit 22054 East Tower

Fhilippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AG Finance Incorparated {the Company,
a subsidiary of RYM Business Managoment Lorp., which comprise the staterments of financizl posilion as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for the vears then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
surmmary of significant accaunting policies,

In our opinien, the financial staterments present fairly, in 2ll material respects, the finencial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for tho years
then ended in accerdance with Philippine Financizl Feporting Standards (PFRS)

Basic far Opinion

We canducted our audits in accordance with Fhilippine Standards on Auditing [PSA). Cur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditar's Respansioilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staternents section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Phifippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical reguirements that
are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in the Fhilippines, and we have fullilled aw othe
ethical respensibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the Code of Fthics, We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial stetements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of aLr audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in farming our opinion thereon, and we do rot provide a separate

opinion on these matters,
Assessment of Realizability of Note Receivoble

As at December 21, 2016 and 2015, the Company's note recevable represents 99% of total assets and the
assessment of its realizability requires the use of significant judgment oy management. Hence, the matter is

of significance to our audit,
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Our audit procedures included the review of management's assessment of the realizability of the note
receivable which includes determining whether there is abjective evidence thal note receivable is impaired.

Further disclosures are included in Note 2, Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumption and
Note 5, Receivable.

Other Matter

The financial statements of AG Finance Incorporated as ot and for the year ended December 31, 2014 were
audited by another auditor whose repart dated February 5, 2015, expressed an unmadified opinicn on those
statements. The opinion of such auditar, however, does not include the prios pericd adjustment discussed in
MNote 17 1o the financial statements,

Other informaotion

Management is responsible far the other information, The other information comprises the information
included in the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) Farm 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC
Form 17-4 and Annual Report to be distributed to stockholders far the year ended December 31, 2016, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditer's report thereon, The SEC Form 20.15, SEC Form
17-A and Annual Report to be distributed to stackhalders for the year ended December 31, 2016 are
expected to be made available ta us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not axpress any
form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibity is to read the other mformatian
identified shove when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financal statements ar our knowledee obtzined in the audits or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financiz! statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 1o epable the
preparation of financial statements that are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar,
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ahility to
continue as a going concern, disclasing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gaing

concern basis of accourting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company of Lo cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with povernance are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial re porting process,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Einancio! Stotements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements & a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonabile assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 gusrantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Msstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aaprepats, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an aucit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audil, We alse:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our cpinion,  The risk of not detecting 2 material
misstaternent resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentianal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internzl control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contre! relevant to the zudit in order ta design audit pracedures that
are appropriate in the clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal cortrol,

= Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of managament’s use of the Eoing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significart doubt on the Company's ability to continue as & gaing concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's repart to
the related-disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are ingdeguate, to modity cur
opinion.  Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our suditor's
report. However, fulure events or conditians may cause the Company Lo cease 1o continue as a going

conoaern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcluding the
disclesures, and wnether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and everts in a
manner that achieves fzir prosentztion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during cur audit,
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We alsa provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and cormmunicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thougit to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the awdit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore the
key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's repart unless law or regulation preciudes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in estrernely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter
should not be commuricated in cur repart because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audisor's repart is Belinda B, Fernando,

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

BELINDA B, FERNANDO

Partner

CPA Cerlificate Mo, 81207

Tax ldentification Mo. 102-085-538-000

BOA Accreditation Mo, 4782, Valic until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditetion Moo 1022-AR-1 Group A
Valie unta March 15, 2020

BIR Accreditetion Mo, DR-005144-4-2037 e
Vabhid untilJznuary 13, 2020 i

PTR Mo, 5908316 a8 '\\
Issuee Jaruary 3, 2017, Makati City = ' y

April 7, 2017 :
iakati City, Metro Manila : ;
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AG FINANCE INCORPORATED o
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Co p.)L "f'i«'-'l'i_‘.-..g'-.ﬂ:-. S

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION X ol .
B ’ ﬁaﬂii/éﬂ 2017 }@)

Wt J,"
L L i LR S ST
H'lllrr-l'-"-{"lli"l
Decgmber 3T
ol . .. PO X 2015
ASEETS
Current Assets
Cash in banks 4 #324,502 PE1,425
Other current assets 2,279,437 2,278,937

Total Current Asscts 2,603,933~ 2,330,362 _-

Noncurrent Asset

Mote receivable ! 334,187,582 327,409,660

R336. 79,500, RI03.750,022

-

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Lizbilities

Accrued expensos and other current liabilizies 7 £2,431,005 E513,545
e
MNoncurrent Liabflity
Deferred tax liability 14 464,354 N
Tatal Labilities 2,895,358 513,945
o - —

Equity

Capital stock

Additional paid-in capital
Deficit "
) Total Equity

261,824,002 201,824,002
74,277,248 74,277,248
(2,205,088) ~  {hHES,173) .

333,896,162 329,236,077

F336,791,521 F325,750022

...... See accampanying Netes to Dinoncis! Sratements.



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
(& Subsidiary oj RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

{With Comparative Figures for 2014)

2014
[fs restated -
Meat e 2016 2015 Mate 17]
INCOME
Interest income 11 R6,778,721 - P34,085,787  E74,021,105
Processing fees - B, D00 4,337,250
Penalties - 529,024 3,857,081
E,??E,?Il_ 35,220,81}; 52,215,434
EXPENSES 12 (1,654,282) [20.155_.&9'9 {32,849 830
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) '
Loss on discounting of loans receivable 5 - (11,639,111) -
Day-1-difference 5 - [11,870527) -
Impairment loss on loans rece vable 5 - = (15,017,567}
Gain from sale of property and equipment 6 - = 15,558,784
Q}_rlf_:i:_rlgt L - (131,802) L3287
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,124,439 (E,576,226) 48,960,110
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 14
Current - 373,967 19,488,131
Deterred 454,354 &68 601 7,008,494
464,354 . __1_,?42,558__. 20,890 025
MET INCORE |LOSS) 4,660,085 . (D,BER,?EI'-Q;I? 22463 485
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS)
Nat to be reclossified to profit or loss -
Femeasuremeant gain {loss) on retirement
ltahility - net of deferred 'mcop‘.r-: tax B - 166,847 (318,810}

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)

 P4,660,085

(F9,651,847)

B22,144 675

=

EARNINGS (LOS5) PER SHARE — BASIC AND
DILUTED

(E0.04;

#i.09

See accomoanging Notes to Floanciol Stalements.



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp. }

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEBLR 31, 2016 AND 2015
{With Comparative Figures for 2014)

2014
[fis restated -
Noie 2016 2015 Motz 17)

CAPITAL STOCK - Rl par value

Authorized - 550,000,000 shares

Issued and owslanding -
261,842,002 shares

F261,824,002 F261,824,007 P261,824,002

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning and end of year

74,277,248 74277248 74,277,248

RETAINED EARNINGS [DEFICIT)
Balance at beginning of vear
MNet income {loss)

Cash dividends

{6,865,173) 126,010,502 103,547,417
4,660,085 (9,818,754) 22,463,485
10 - [123,057,281) =

Balance at end of year

(2,205,088) (6,865,173} 126,010,902

REMEASUREMENT GAIN (LOSS) ON
RETIREMENT LIABILITY

Balance at beginning of vear - {166,847) 151,963
Effect of curtailment - 166,847 -
Remeasurement loss on retirement liabilty - - (318.810)
Balance at enc of year ) = - (166,847

F333,896,162 K320 236,077 P4A61, 045 305

X

See oocompoaydng Notes o Hnancio! Sarements.



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.) _

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

(With Comparative Figures for 2014)

2014
[fs restated -
MNote 2016 2015 Mate 17}
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss] befure income tas F5,.124,439 [E&,57E,226) B4E,950,110
Adjustments for:
fnterest income 11 {6,778,721) {34 GBS TET) [#4,0271,105)
Depreciation ) - 169,335 2,029,355
Unrealized foreign currency losses [pains) - 196,908 [53,287)
Gain on sale of properly and equinment [ = - (15,558 784)
Operating loss before working capital chanpes (1,654,282) [42,345,770) [328.643,711)
Decrease (increase) in:
Mote receivable = (320,765, 206) -
Loan receivalle - 174,235,601 [3,391,885)
Other current assets {500) (2,03E,102] 11,008,450
Increase {decrease! in:
Accrued expenses and other current
liabiiities 1,917,060 (4,011,411 1578.421)
Retirermant liability - [2,948,625) _ BEGEIG
Net cash gencrated from Jused for) operations 262, 27H {142 897 .513) (42 966,011)
Interest received 799 27,445,331 74,021,108
Income taxes peid _ - 16,526,777) {115,729,287)
Net cash provided oy (used in] cperating activities 263,077 (1/2,078857) 15,325,813
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (incroasel in other noncurrent assets i 564,345 [1EZ.833)
Proceeds from szle of property and eguipment & - 300,832 i6,438,013
Acguisitions of property and equinment g - £ 1433,454]
Net cash provided by investing sctivities - B65,177 27,761,716
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid 0 - (123,057 281 -
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN CLUIRRENCY TRANSLATION = ﬂlﬂﬁ.EI;lE:! 53,287
MNET INCREASE [DECREASE) IN CASH IN BANKES 263,077 (294,417 985 43 140 816
CASH IN BANEKES AT BE‘GLINNING OF YEAR 51,425 94,479,344 251,338,578
Ef’LSHIN BANES AT END DFIIEHR B324,502 Ec’:i.f?.".- R334,4759,344

See gccampariyng Notes to Hnancial Stotements



AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.) R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{With Comparative Information for 2014)

1. Corporate Information

AG Finance Incorporated (the Compzny) was incorporated and rapistered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission {SFC) on December 14, 2001 primarily to oporate as a financing
company and provide short-term, ursecured credit facilities to permanent rank-and-file emplogees
of medium-sized companies in the Prilippines.

The Company's shares of steck were listed in the Fnilippine Stock Exchange (PSE} on
August 13, 2013, As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 261,824,002 shares of the Company are listed

in the PSE,

On lune 25, 2015, RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM or the Parent Company} acguired
183,276,801 shares representing 70% interest in the Company from various stockholders,

The Company's registered office is Unit 22054 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center,
Exchange Read, Crtigas Center, Pasig City.

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015 {with comparative figures and information in 2014) were approved and authorized for issue by
the Board of Directors on April 7, 2017,

Status of Operations
The Cempany's operating segment consists anly of lending activities which was winded down in

2015, The Company is in the process of applying with the SEC for the change of its principal pLrDose
to a holding company.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The finzncial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards {PFRS).  This financial reporting fremework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards [PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of issuances by the International Sinancial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, issued by the Financial Reperting Standards Council and adopted oy the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

Measurement Bases
The financizl statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Pesa), which is the Compary's functional

currency. Allvalues arc in absolute amount, unless otherwise stated,

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on g histarica basis, Historice! cost iy
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of an asset,

Fair value is the price that would be recewed to sell an asser or paid 1o transfer o lability i en
orderiy transaction between market participants at the transaction date.



The Company uses market ehservable data to g possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a liability, Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based en
inputs used in the valuation technigues a5 follows:

o levell - Quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Labilities.

* level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly chservahle,

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unchservable,

if the inputs used to measure the fair value of ar asset or a liability might be categorzed in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the feir value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that i significant to the entire

measurement,

The Company recogrizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reparting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information zbout the sssumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 15,
Financial Risk Management Objoctives and Policies.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The acceunting palicies adopted are consistant with those of the previous financial year, except for

the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Compary adapted effective for
annual perods beginning on or after January 1, 2016:

*  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Finoncial Stotements: Disclasure [nitiotive - The
amendments clarify guidance on materiality and aggregation, the preseniation of subtotals, the
structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Company. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to

financial statements, as applicable.

MNew and Amended PFRS Not Yet Adopted
Relevant new and amended PERS which are not et effective for the year ended December 31, 2016

and have not been applied in prepering the financial statements are summarized below
Effective for annual periods beginning on er after January 1, 2017;

* Amendments to PAST, Statement of Cosh Flows - Disclosure Initiative — The amendments
reguire entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to eveluate
changes infiabilities arising from their financing aclivities

*  Amendments lo PAS 12, fncome Toxes - fecognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unreolized
Lasses = The amendments clarify the accaunting for deferred 1ax assels related to unrealized
losses an debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice



Effective for annual periods beginning on ar atter Jzn Jary 1, 2018 —

* PFRS 8, Financial instruments — This standard will replace PAS 38, Financiol Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PERSS9). It contains
reguirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment, hedge accounting and derecognitian.

FFRS 9 requires all recegnized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value [through profit or loss or through other comprehensive incomel, depending an their
classification by reference to the business model within which they are heid and their
contractua cash flow characteristics,

Far financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS @ relates 1o cases where the fair value
oplion is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through prafit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expeciad credit loss” mode! bazed
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract. It will no longer be
necessary lor there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS & introduces a substantial overhaul allawing financizl statements to
better refiect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-

financial risk exposures,

The derecognition provisions are carried over almast unchanged from FAS 30,
'

Cffective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2019 -

s PFR5 16, Leoses — Significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will
be brought onto lessees’ statements of finandal position under a single model {except leases of
less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminzting the distinction between
operating and finance leases, Lessor accaunting, however, remains largely unchanged and the

distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adaption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional
disclosures will be included in the notes financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. Financizl assets and liaoilities are recognized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes @ party to the contractual provision of a financial instrument,
Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value, In the case of regular way purchase or sale
of financial assel, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade date accounting

fnitial Recagnitior. Financial assets and lahilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is the
fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a lability). The initial



measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value through pratit and
loss (FVYPL), includes transaction cost,

Classification, The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: {a) financial zssets at FviPL, (hb) held-to-maturity [HTM) investments, (o) foans and
receivables and (d) available-lor-sale (AFS) investments, Financial lighilities, on the other hand, are
classified as either financial liabilities at FYPL or other financial liabilities a: amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or incurred
and whether or not the instruments are guoted in an active market,

“Day 1" Differcnces. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technigue whose variabies include only data from cheervable market, the Company recognizes tho
difference between the transzction price and fair value {a “Day 1” difference) in the statement of
comprehensive income.  In cases where there is no abservable data on inception, the Company
deemed the transactions price as the best estimate of fair value znd recognizes "Dy 17 difference in
profit ar loss when the inputs become chservable or when the instrument is derecognized. Foreach
transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of rocognizing the “Day 17

gdifference.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company does not have financial assets and liabilities zt
FVPL, HTM investments and AFS firancizl assets,

loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturitics and that are not quoted in an active market, These are not entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as AFS
investments or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assots if
maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Hherwise, these are classified o5 noncurrent

assets,

After initial measurement, leans and receivables are subsequently measured at amertized cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized east is caleulated by
taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaclion cost which are
directly attributable in the acquisition of the financial instrument. Tne amortization is included in

profit or loss,
This category includes cash in banks and note receivable.

COther Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financia! liabilities are classified in this categary if
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FYPL upeon the inception of the lability, These
include liabilities arising frem operations or through borrowing.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cast using
the effective interest method, Amorlized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issuec
costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in orofit or lass when the lisbilitios are
derecognized, as well as when there is amortization ProCess

This category includes accrued expenses and other current liabilitie: [excluding statutory payables),



Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilites

Financial Assets. Afinancial asset (or where applicable, a part af & financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Company when,

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

= the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, hut has assumed an
obligation te pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”

arrangemaont; or

* the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flaws from the asset and either {a)] has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b} has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control over

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inte
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred contrel of the asset, the asset is recognized ta the extent of the
Company’s continuing involverment in the asset, Continuing involvement that taices the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the fower of original carrying value of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o pay,

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liahility is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther
trom the same lender on substantially differont terms, or the terms of an existing lahility are
substantially medified, such an exchenge or modification is treated as a derecognition of the criginal
liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying value is

recognized in profit or loss,

A maodification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interect rate, is
different by at least 10% frem the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the criginal
liability,

The fair value of the madified financial lisbility is determined based an its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rale at which the Cempany could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The dflerence between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability is recognized in the separate statements o comprehensive income,

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% thresheld, the ariginal debt is mot
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying value is adjusted by the costs o fees
paid or received in the restructuring.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financizl assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
pasition i, and only if, there is a currently enlorcesble legal right ta offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis or to realize the assot end setlle the labdity
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agrecments where the related
assets and liabilities are presented pross in the statements of financial oosition,
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Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reparting date whether there is ohjective evidence that & financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or grcup of financial assets i deemed impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of cne ar mote evonss Lhat oceurred
after the initiz! recognition of the asset {an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event {or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can he
reliably estimated. The carrying value of the impaired account is reduced to the extent that it exceeds
the asset’s net realizable value. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profit or loss. If in a
subsequent period, the amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased because of an event
occurring after impairment was recognized, the decline is atlowed to be reversed Lo protit or loss 1o the
extent that the resulting carrying value will not exceed the amartized cost determined had no

impairment been recognized.

Assets Carried ot Amortized Cost, For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first
assesses whether objoctive evidence of impzirment exicts individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financizl assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no ohjective evidence of impzirment exists for 2n individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or net, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is callectively aszested for impairment,
Those characteristics are relevant ta the estimation of future cash flows for groups af such assets by
being indicative of the debtar’s ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of

impzairment,

t there is objective evidence that an impairment lass has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying wvalue and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carrying value of the
asset shall be reduced directly or through the use of an aliowance account. The amount of loss shall

be recognized in profit or loss,

If, in & subsequen! period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because af an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recopnized impairment foss is
reduced by adjusting the zllowance account. Ay subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recegnized in the profit ar loss, 1o the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not excecd its

amarlized cost at the reverzal date,

Other Current Assets
Other current assets primarily include croditable withholding taxes [CWT).

CWT. CWT arc amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWT can bo
utitized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supparted by certificetes of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation,

Property and Equipment

Property and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value, The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impen
duties, nan-refundable purchase taxes aftar deducting trade discounts and reoetes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for ils interded use,
The cost of seli-construcied assets includes the cost of matenals and direct labar, any other tosts




directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs ef
dismantling and remaving the items and restoring the site on which they are locsted and capitalized
borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is

capitalized as part of the cquipment,

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operaticn, such as
repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs
are incurred. Insituations where it can be clearly demanstrated that the expenditures have resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
preperty and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of preperty and equipment, The cost of replacing a component of
an item of property and equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefils
embodied within the compaonent will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably,
The carrying value of the replaced component is derecognized,

When parts of an item of property and cquipment have different yseful lives, they are accounted for
ds separate items (major components) of property and equipment

Depreciation is calculaled on a straight-line basis with estimated useful lives of 3-5 years for
furniture, fixtures and office equipment.

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periadically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of cconomic benefits

from items of property and equipment,

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumuiated
depreciation and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gain ar loss

is credited to or charged against current aperations,

Impairment of Property and Equipment
Nonfinancial assets consisting of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverzble, I any such indication exists and where the carrying amount of an asset exceads its
recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is written down to its recoverable amount,
The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to self and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value
using a pre-tax discourt rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of maney and
the risks specific to the asset. For an 2sset that does not generate largely independent cash infiows,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,
Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income,

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previouwsly
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. f such indication exists,
the recoverzble amount is estimated, & previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable ameount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the cage, the carrying amount of the asset iy
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amounl cannct exceed the carmying amoun:
that would have besn determined net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recopnized for
the asset in pricr years, After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted n future pariods
to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over

remaining usefu! fife,



Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, net of tax,

APIC. Proceeds andfor fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are

recognized as APIC,
Deficit. Deficit represents the accumulated net income or loss, less any dividends declared.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount of revenue can be measwred reliably, Revenue is recoznized as follows:

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Processing Fees. Processing fees are recognized at the time the loan contract was agreed with the
borrowers to the extent of the cost incurred for processing of the loans extendad.

Penaities. Penalties are recognized based on a certain percentage of monthly amortizations that
were collected beyond due date,

Otherlincome. Income fraom other sources is recognized when earned.

Expenses Recognition

Expenses are recagnized in profit or loss when there is a decrease in future econamic benefit relsted
to & decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured refiably,

Finance Costs. Finance costs represent the cost of money used in operatians. It is recognized as
incurred using the effective interest rate methad,

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits. The Company provides short-term berefits 1o its employeers in the form of
basic 13th month pay, bonuses, emplover's share on gavernmenl contribution, and other
short-term benefits. Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured an an undiscounted basis
and are expenszed as the related service is provided.

Retirement Benefits. The Company has an unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit plan covering
all qualified emplayees, The retirement benefiss cost is determined using the projected unit credit
methad which reflects sorvices rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees' projected salaries.

The Company recognizes service costs, Comprising of current service costs, pasl service cosls, gains
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and interest expense in proft or loss,
Interest expense is calculated by applying the discount rate to the retirement liabiiity or assel.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss en the earlier of the date af the plan amendment
or curtailment and the date that the Cormpany recognizes restructuring-related costs,



Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arlse. Remeasurements are not reclassfied to

profit orioss in subsequent periods,

The retirement liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, The
present value of the retirement liability is determined by discounting the estimated fulure cash
outflows using interest rate on government bands that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the relatec retirement liability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
financial statements do nat differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at the

reporting date.

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amaount is the one that
has been enacted or substantively cnacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amcunts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward benefits of any unused tax eredits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) and any unused net operating loss carryover (NGLCO), ta the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry-
forward benefits of unused MCOT and urused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not
recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an 2sset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or oss.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewsd st each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available ta zllow all or part
of the deferred tax zsset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has hecome probable that future taxabie

profit will allow the deferred tax 258l to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply 1o the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rate that has been enacted
ar substantively enacted al the reparting date,

Deferred tax 5 recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 1o offsel current tax
assets agzinst current tax lizbilities and the deferred taxes relate to the seme taxable entily and the

same taxation authorily,



Earnings [Loss) per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income for the yvear attributable to
capital stocknolders by the weighted average number of cepital stock outstanding during the year,
with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and slock spli

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of capital
stock outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinzry shares,

Where the earnings {loss) per share effect of potential dilutive capitz! stock would be anti-dilutive,
basic and diluted earnings {loss) per shere are stated st the same amount.

Related Parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the

other perty or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financzial znd operating
decisions, Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or

common significant influence.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting
entity and a related party, regardiess whether a price is charged.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of & past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be reguired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Cantingencies
Contingent liabilities are nel recognized inthe financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes

to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources ambodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent zssets are not recognized in the financial statements bul are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is prababic.

Everts after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's financial position at

the end of reporting period {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements when
Post year-end events that are nen-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial

material.
statements when material,

Segment Reporting
AN operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and exponses that relate 1o the
transzctions with any of the Company's other componeris.

The Company's operating segment consists only of lending activities which was winded down in
2015. As discussed in Note 1, the Company is in the process of applying with the SEC for the change
of its principal purpose to 3 holding company.
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3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and .ﬁssurﬁﬁ_tiuns

PFRS requires management to exercise judgments and make estimates and assumptions thal affect
the amounts reparted in the financial statements. The judgment and estimates and assumptions
used in the financial statements are based upon management’s evsluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the reporting date. While the Company believes that the assumption: are
reasonabie and appropriste, significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in
the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts. The estimates znd underlying
assumptions are revicwed on an on-going basis. Actua! resuits could differ from such estimates.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recegnized in the financial statements.

Accounting for Operating Lease - Company s o Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has an operating
lease agreement for its office space. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of
ownership related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the lease iz

accounted for as an operating lease,

Rent expense amounted to nil and £1.5 millicn in 2016 and 2015, respectively (BD.3 million in 2014)
{see Note 12),

Determining Opercting Segments.  The Company determines and presents operating segments
based on the information that is internally provided to the BOD. A: a2t December 31, 2016 and 2015,
the Company has determined that it has no operating segment other than being a holding company.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimating Aliowence for Impairment of Recejvables.  The Company maintains allowance for
receivable impairment at a level considered adeguate to provide for potential uncollectible
receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that
atfect the collect bility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limitec to, the length of
the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor's payment behaviour and known market
factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtful of coliection
and reviews the age and stetus of the remaining receivables and establishes a provision considaring,

among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

Impeirment loss on lecan receivable amounted to nil in 2016 and 2015 (F16.0 million in 2014}
(see Mote 5},

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has not provided any allowance for impsirment
losses for note receivable, This assessment is undertaken each financial vear through examining the
finzncial pasition of the counterparty and the market in which the counterparty aporatos,

The carrying amount of note receivable amounted to R334.2 million and P327.4 million at
Lecember 31, 2016 and 2015, respoctively (see Note &}
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Estimating Useful Lives of Property ond Cquipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and equipment based on the period aver which the assets are expected to be available far
use. The Company annually reviews the estimated usefu’ lives of property and eguipment based on
factors that include asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technolopical charges,

environmental changes and anticipated use of the assets,

There is no change in the useful lives of the Campany’s property and equipment in 2015, In 2015,
the Company's praperty and equipment were sold &t its carrying amount (see MNote &),

Assessing Impairment of Property and equipment, The Campany assesses impairment on property
and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of

an asset may not be recoverable,

The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment review
include the following:

* significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results:
* significant changes in the mannar of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;

oF
s significant negative industry or economic trends.

Mo impairment loss was recognized in 2015 and 2014,

Estimating Retirement Liability. The determination of the Company's retirement obligation and
costs is dependent on the selection by management of assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Thase assumptions include, among others, discount rate and salary increase rate.

Actual results that differ from the Company's assumptions are recarded zs addition to or deduction
from retirement liability and recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive incoms, One or
more of the actuarial assumptions may differ significantly and as a result, the actuarial present value
of the retirement obligation estimated as at reporting date may differ significantly from the amaount

reported.

In 2015, the Company terminated all of its emplovees due to cessation of operations and change in
management (see Note 8).

Assessing Realizabiity of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets were not recognized on temporary differences and carry forward benefits of
unused NOLCO and MCIT as al December 31, 2016 and 2015 because the management has assessad
that there will be no sufficient taxable profits against which deferred tax 2ssets can be utifized.

The Company's unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted 1o P15.1 million and B16.2 millicn as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively {see Note 14)



4. CashinBanks
Cash in banks earn interest &t prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income earned amounted to
E759 and 0.3 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively (R1.9 million in 2014) (see Nate 11).
5. MNote Receivahle _
On May 5, 2015 the Company’s outstanding loans receivables with carrying armount of
#344.2 million, ret of allowance for impairment loss of B40.9 million, were exchanged for a five-vear
note receivable with a nominal amount of 8332.6 million, resulting o a loss of F11.6 million,
The note receivable was inftially recognized with a Day-1-difference of B11.9 millien. The Day-1-
difference is being amartized aver the term of the note of five yEars,
Movements of this account follows:
i s Mote 2016 2{}151
Nominal amount F332,639,733 332,635,732
Day-1-difference {11,870,527) (11,870,527}
320,765,200 320,_?'_5‘%_,2(:'5
Accretion of interest: 11
Balance at beginning of year 6,640,454 -
Accretion 6,777,922 _ 6,640,454
Balance at end of year 13,418,376 E£,640,454
- B 'F334,187,582 327,409,660
Interest income earned related to loans receivable amounted to B27.2 million in 2015, {#72.2 million
in 2014] {see Mote 11, Impairment loss on loans receivable recognized amounted to 16.0 millian in
2014,
6. Property and Cguipment _

Maovemenls in this account in 2015 fallows:

Furniture, Fixtures

MNote and Office Equipment
Cost = N
Balance at beginning of year F3,526,443
Disposals _ 13,526,443)
Balance at end of year o Ee
Accumulated Depreciation ) ) a
Ealance atl beginning of yvear 3,056,276
Depreciation 12 169,335
Disposals ) (3,725,651 1)
Bezlance at ena of year _. ) - o kA
F

Carrying Amount _




=

In 2014, the Company sold its condominium units and furniture, fixtures and office equipment with
carrying amounts of F11.1 millicn and #1.7 million, respestively, for P2EA million, resuting in 2 gain

of B15.6 millian,

On June 1, 2015, all of the Company's remairung property and equipment were soid at its carrying

amount.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

Mot 2016 2015

Ciue to a related party 9 £2,044,457 244,650

Accrued expenses 369,600 252,733
Statutory payables 16,948 16,556 _

 F2,431,005 P513,945

Accrued expenses include unpaid professional Tees and other expenses that are expected to be
scttled within the next financial year,

Retirement Benefits

The Company has an unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular employees. The retirement benefits are based on years of service and
compensstion during the last month of employment,

On June 25, 2015, the Company has terminated ali of its employees due to the cessation of
operations and change in management,

The retirement benefit cozt (income)! recognized in prafit or loss as part of “Salaries and employee
benefits” under "Expenses” account are as follows:

oy 2016 2015 2014
Gain on curtailment - (#2,948,625) B
Current service cost - - 542.63E
Interest cost - - 123,900

] R (#2,948,625) B666,536

Changes in the retirement liability recognized in the statemments of financizl pasition are as foliows:

e e 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year o R- 3,186,978
Fifect of curtailment _ _ - 13,186,978)
Balance at end of year . B 8




Remeasurement (gain) loss recopnized Tollaw:

2015 2014

Through profit or loss - B
Gain on curtailmant {R2.048 625} F—
Thraugh clher comprehensive income;
Gain on curtailment [238,353) -
Changes in financial assumptians - 546,523
Experience adjustmenis - - {31,080

} {F3,186,978] P455,443

The cumulative remeasurement gzin (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income (oss) follows:

2015 i e
. .1EE:.’.F."|L]EI‘ti'-'E
Remeasurement
Cumilative Deferred Gain (Loss),
Remeaasurement Income Tax  Wet of Deferred
Loss [zee Note 14) Income Tax
Balance at beginning of year (B23R,353) (F71,500] {PIGE,B47)
Gain on curlaiiment 238,353 EER=) LBG,EAY
Balance at end of vear =N P = '
ity ‘ e —— e e ——
2014 -
Cumnulative
Femeaszurenent
Curulative Delerred Gain {Loss),
Remeasurement income Tax  Netl ol Deterred
_ Lass [sEc Mote 14) Incamo lax
Balance at beginning of year #3117,050 PG5, 127 F151,965
Net remeasurament loss - {455,443] {136,633} {318,810)
Balance at end of year ; {FZ38,353) (P71,506) (w160 BAT)

Related Party Transactions

CQutstanding balance and transaction with related parties are as follows:

Related Party Undar Common Control

Qusstanding Balance

Mature of Amaurl al Trensaction
Transaction 2015 201= 2016 3015
Due to a related party
Bright Kindle Respurcar Advances for
&lnvestmerts, Ine.  working capits’ R1,799,801 RRLAELE  B2,084,457 B44,655

Outstanding balance which is included in "Accrued expenses and ather current lizbilities” account is
noninterest-bearing, pavable on demand and settlerment oocurs in cash,
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Key Management Personnel
Compensation of key management personnel consists of shart-term benefits amounting to nil and
E2.7 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively {F3.9 million in 2014,

10. Cash Dividends

On March 25, 2015, the Company declared cash dividends of #123.1 million or 80.47 a share to
stockhalders on record of April 15, 2015, The dividends were paid on April 24, 2015,

11. Interest Income

This account consists af:

Note 2016 2015 2014

Accretion 5 RE, 777,922 Fi, 640,454 -

Cash in banks 4 74948 292,635 1,855,521

Loans receivable 5 - 27,152,098 72,165,584

BG, 778,721 £34,085,787 F74,021,105

12, Expenses
This account consists of;

: Maote 2016 2015 2014
Professional fees EG334,959 k1,594 452 £1,797 586
PSE fees 283,960 253,000 258,000
Directors fee 199,673 105,882 -
Quiside sewices_ 163,600 75,347 =
Representation 41,500 272,608 785,297
Communication and utilities 15,000 BLE,167 1,466,100
Legzl and bank charges 2,000 53,070 57,350
Taxes and licenses 500 4 834,357 7,122,510
Salaries and employee benefits - 6,443,639 11,199,875
Rent - 1,484,250 283,149
Office supplies - 875,445 1,606,608
Contractuzl services - 780,014 1,668,812
Insurance - 345,714 496,258
Transportation and travel - 327,409 J8E.BE3
Dues and subscription - 321,947 540,313
Marketing and collection - 265,377 993,536
Depreciation 6 - 165,335 2,029,355
Others 12,090 go7,441 1,686,158
Fl,654,282 B20,155,497 £32,849.830
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Expenses recognized as salarics and employee benefits are presented below:

% MNote 2015 2014
Salaries and other short-term benefits FO, 397 264 F10,533,330
Retirement benefit cost {income) 8 [2.948 625| B606,530

P6,443,630  P11,199,875

—

13. Earnings [Loss) Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is camputed as foliows:

2016 2015 2014

RA4,660,085  (RO.818,794) R22.463,485

flet income {loss]

Weighted averape number of common
chares

Earnings (lass) per share - basic and diluted

ALERT

261,824,002 261,824,002 261,824,002
P0.02 (P0.02) PO.0S

There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential comman shares that occurred
subsequent to the reporting dates.

14. Income Taxes

There is no provision for income tax in 2016 because the Company is in a nel tax loss position, The
current provision for income tax in 2015 regresents MCIT (RCIT in 2014)

The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory income tax to the provision for incame
tax shown in the statements of comprehensive income follows:

2016 2015 2014
Income tax computed at statutory tax' il
rate R1,537,332 [R2,572,B6E) R14,68E,033
Change in unrecognized deferrod tax
assets (1,085,188) 3,903,227 12,284,429
Add (deduct) tax effects on:
Nondeductible expenses 12,450 - 80,B1%
Interest incamc already subjected
to final tax ] (240) [&7,791) {556,656

R464,354 B1l,242 565 F26,496,625
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Details of unrecognizod deferred tax assets are as follows:

: 2016 205
NOLCD E14,728,501 #14,200,5949
rICH 373,967 373,567
Cay-1-difference pn note receivable - 1,569,022
- 44,073

Unrealized foreign exchange lass

F15,102,4G8 216,187,650

On December 31, 2016, the Company recognized the net deferred tex liability on Day-1-difference
and accretion on note receivable amounted to P264,354,

The details of NOLCO which can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income within three
years from the year the NOLCD was incurred js shown below,

Brginning
Year Incurred __Balance Incurred Expirea  Ending Balance Valid Until
2016 B- R1,759,631 F-  R1,759,691 2019
2015 47,335,312 . - 47,335,312 018
Fa7.335312 1,780,181 F- #5025 005

MCIT incurred in 2015 amounting to B0.4 million can be claimed as deduction against income tax
liability unzil 2018,

Management has assessed that there will be no fulure taxable income against which the deferred
tax assels can be utilized,

15.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent the
Company from achieving its cbjectives. These policies zre intended to manzge rsks identifisd in
such a way that opportunities to deliver the Company’s ohjectives ere achieved. The Company’s risk
managemenl takes place in the context of day-lo-day operations and normal business processes
such as strategic and business planning. Management has identified each risk and is responsible for
coordinating and continuously improving risk strategies, processes and measures in accordance with
the Company’s established business chjectives,

Financial Risks

The Company’s financial instruments cansist of cash in banks, note receivable and accrued exnences
and other current liabilities (excluding statutary payables), which arise directly from its operations,
The main risks arising from the use of these financial instruments are credit risk and hiquidity rick,
Management reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks which are

summarized below,

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on cutstanding financial instruments should a

counterparty default on ils obligation. The Company's expasure ta credit risk arses promarily from
cash in banks and note receivable,
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Credit Quality,  Credil risk arising from the inability of counterparty ta mees! the terms of the
Company's financial instrument is generally limited to the amount, if any, by which the
counterparty’s ebligations exceed the obligation of the Company. With respect to credit risk arising
trem the Company’s financial essets the Company's expesure to credit risk arises from delault of the
counterparty, with a maximum cxposure equal to the carrying values of these instruments,

The aging analyses of financial assets as at December 31 are as follows:

— _2';}15 aL e ———
NEiLfreLEEst Due Mor impaired  pact Due But Mot Pazt Due and
High Grade  Standard Grade Impalred Irnpairec Tatal
Cashin banks R324,502 F- B k- P324,502
MWote recaivable 33¢,18?.5E2m" - - - 334,13?,51{&
334,512,088 B R B~ 334,512,080
o 2015 B
Meither Fast Due Nor Impaired Past Due St Mol Fast Due and
High Grate Standard Grade Impaired Impaired Total
Cazhin banks BG1,425 [ E— k- BH1,425
Loans receivable 327,402,650 et - - - 3_1?,409,5-5__0__
P317,471 .08 o P - Ff_BE 7E71.085

Cash in banks are entered into with reputable financial institutions duly approved by the BOD.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle ar meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to meet

all foreseeabie cash needs,

The carrying amaount of the accrued and other current labilities (excluding statulory payables) as a1
December 31, 2016 and 2015 represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows and is payable on

demand.

Fair Value Measurement
Sct out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair values of the Company’s

financizl instruments that are carried in the financial statements:

2016 e e e
Carrying Value " Fair Value Carryirg Walure Fair Value
Financial Assels i =
Cash in banks Fi24,502 p324,502 PE1 425 FG1A2E
Maote recejvabilo - 334,1E7,582 346,153,126 227,408,660 333,358,348
. I —— P334,512,q3-'-:|_____I?_E_fl_@iﬂ_i’?,_ﬁzﬁ_f_?f?T,ﬂ'ﬁi,t!{%b_ k333,420,823
Financial Ligbilities
Accrued and other current
ligkifities® F2,414,057 BZ,414,057 FA0T 3ED P497,380
TT_;HH-J.I h!hrl);ff .':u::{-u,'-'l.':- pmouning o K16 S48 and H-.* 5_;:‘._|:.r' .[]n:'f'_'-n-1.'_..;_-." 31, 2006 6nd 2015, ¢ I. .m.rul,’
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Cash in Bonks ond Accrued and Other Current Linbilities. The carrying values of cash in banks and
accrucd and cther current liabilitios approximate their fzir values due to the short-term nature of the
transactions. The fair value measurcment of current financial assets and liabilitics is classilied as Level

3 (significant unobservable inputs),

Note Receivable. The fair value of the Company's note receivable was computed using the credit
adjusted risk-free rate of 3.67% to 3.90% as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Capital Management

The Company's capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and 1o provide an adeguate return to sharehaolders by creating products and services
commensurate with the level of risk. The Company manages its capital struciure and makes
adjustments ta i, in light of changes in econamic conditions. 7o maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or convert refated

party advances to an equity component item,

The Company monitors its capltal using the debt to equity ratio, which is the total liabilities divided
by the total equity.

There has been ne change made in the objectives, policies and process in 2016 and 2015,

17.

Other Matter

The Company’s financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014 were restated
to take up the derecognition of deferred taw asset related to the allowance for impairment [oss on
leans receivable amounting to 812.3 million.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stcckholders and the Board of Directors

AG Finance Incorporated

Unit 22054 East Tower

Philizpine Stock Exchange Center, Exchenpe Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AG Finance Incorporated (the Company), a
subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corparation, as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016
on which we have rendered our report deted April 7, 2017,

In compliance with Securities Regulations Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has nine (9) stackholders owning one hundred (100} or more shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & CoO.

-

Brlirn b Junary

BELINDA B. FERNANDD

Partner
CPA Certificats No, B1207
Tax laentifization Mo, 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782 Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accraditation Mo, 1022-AR-1 Group A
WValic until March 15, 2020
BIE Accreditation Ko, DB-0D%144-4-2017
Vald unti January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 2208526
Izsued lanwary 3, 2007, Makati City

April 7, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockho/ders and the Board of Directors

AG Finance Incorporated

Unit 22054 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road
Crtigas Centar, Pasig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statemenis of AG Finance
Incorporated {the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2016 included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated
April 7, 2017, Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules as at December 31, 2016 are the respensibility of
the Company’s management, These supplementary schedules include the following:

«  Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interprotations

*» Financial Ratios

+ Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

*  Schedules required by Part Il of Securities Regulation Cade (SRC) Rule 68, as amended

These schedules are presented for purposas of complying with SRC Rule 68 Part Il, as amenced, and are not
part of the financial statements. This information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements, including comparing such information directly to the underlying
accounting and ether records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves. In our opinian, the information is fairly stated in all material respect in relation to the financial

staternents taken as a whele.

REYEs TACANDONG & Co,

M ﬁ" M
BELINDA B, FERNANDO

Fartner
CPaA Certificate Mo, B1207
Tax identification Mo, 102-086-338-000
BOA Accreditation Mo, 4¥E2; Valid unti! December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation Mo, 1022-AR-1 Group A
Walid until March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. DB-005144-4-2017
Vahd until January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 5908528
Issued January 3, 2027, Makati City

April 7, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
_IIA Subsidiary of RYM Busip_e;_s_ Managemen_iﬂt_:_:_r_rfpl.‘}_*

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Title

- Adopted

|
Mot Not

Adopted ' Applicable

Framewark for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements
Conceptual Framewaork Phase A: Ohjectives and gualitative characteristics v
PFRS: Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {PFRS)
Mot Not
PFRS i d ;
Tl | Adopted | iopted | Applicable
; First-time Adoption of Philippine Fi i i .
PFRS 1 (Revised) op ppine Financial Reporting y
Standards
Amcndments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for v
First-time Adopters
Amendment ta PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v '
Adoplers |
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinfiation and -
Rermoval of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FFRS 1; Governmant Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Paymeant v
Amendments to PPRE 2: Vesting Conditions and o~
Cancellations
Amendrments to FFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- - ;
based Payment Trarsactions
FFRS 3 {Revised} | Business Combinations ¥
Amendment o PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration i a Business Combination
Amendment ta FFRS 3: Scope Exception: lor loint W
Yenlures
Insurance Contracts v

PFRS 4

Arnendments to PFRS 4: Frnancial Guarantee Contracts




| : Mot
FFRS Titie | Adopted Applicable
- Asnets o Discontinued
PERS & Mo cu.rrent ots Held for Sale and Discontinued 7
Qperations _
Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Dispasal v
PFRS & Exploration for and Evaluation of #Miners! Resources v
PFRS 7 Finarcial Instruments: Disclosures ¥
Amendments to PFRS 7; Reclassilication of Financial v
Assets
Amendrments ta FFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial -
Aesets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PYRS 7: tmproving Disclosures about v
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of o
Financial Assets
Armendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting v
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitios
Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts v
Amendment to FFRS 7; Applicability of the
Amendments ta PFRS 7 ta Condensed Interim Financial d
Statements
FFE: E Cperating Segrnents ¥
Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating -
Segments
Amentdments te PFRS 8 Reconciliation of the Total of | v
the Reportabile Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets
PFRS 10 Cansolidated Financial Statements v
Amendments to PFRS 10; Transition Guidance v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities v
Armendments to PERS 100 Investment Entities: Applying e
the Consolidation Exception
PFRS 11 Jaint Arrangoments i
Amendments ta PFRS 11: Transition Guidance ¥
Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions o
of Interests in Joint Cperations
FFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Armendments o PFRS 12 Transition Guidance 8
i i} 1 LS L, SRRy




itl ekt Mot Mot
PFRS Title i Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PFRS 12 tnvestment Entities v
Amendmants to PFRS 12: investment Entities: Applying v
the Consalidation Exception
PFRS 13 Fair Value Moasurement ¥
Amendment to PFRS 13: Shart-lerm receivables and v
Fayables
Armendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Account v
Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS)
5 Titl Adopted | | NOt pat
i e opke Adopted | Applicable
PaS 1 (Revised) | Fresentstion of Financial Statements v
Amendments to PAS 1; Puttable Financial Instrurments o
and Obligations Arising on Liguidation
Amondments to PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of Other s
Comprehensive Income
Amendment to PAS 1; Clarification of the v
Reguirements for Comparative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative ¥
PAS 2 Imventories v
PAS T Statermernt of Cash Flows v
PAS B Accaunting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates A
and Errors
PAS 10 | Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Constructian Contracts v
PAS 12 ncome Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underiying Assets
Pas i Froperty, Plant and Equipment v
Arnendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing ”
Equipment
Amendment to PAS 16 Bevaluation Mothod -
Froportionate Restatemsnt of Accumulated v
Deprecialion




i ' Kooty | Nt Not
RAS L bz Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 1a: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Ciarilication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amartization
Amendment te PAS 16: Apriculiure: Bearer Plants v
Pas 17 Leasos ¥
Fas 18 Revenue v
PAS 18
, Employee Benefits v |
(Revised) o5 L
Armendment to PAS 12: Defined Benzfit Plans: v
Employce Contricutions
Amendment to PAS 1% Discount Rate: Regional Market v
lssue
PAS 20 Ach:ur}Ling for G.m-l?rmﬂenl Grants and Disclosure of i
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Fareign Operatian v
PAS 23 (Revised] | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 (Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24 Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Ret rement Benefit Plans v
PAs 27
\ te Fi & [ | ¥
baiaridEd] Separate Financial Statements
Amendments to PAS 27: lnvestment Entities v
Armendments to PAS 27: Equity Methed in Separate 5
| Financial Statements
pas 28 )
: Investments in Associatos and faint Ventures v
[Amended)
Amendments to PAS 28 Investment Entitizs: Applying o
the Consolidation Exception
FAS 20 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Frnancial Instruments: Disclosure and Erosentation v
Firrarcial fnstrumentsa: Presentation v
Amendmaents to PAS 32 Futtahle Financial Instruments >
and Obligations Arising on Liguidztion
Amendment te PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues v
2E i o B IR S




PAS

Title

Mot |
Adopted

Amendments to PAS 32: Ofisetting Financial Assets and
Finanaal Liabilities

Ameondments to PAS 32 Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders af Equity Instruments

=
Applicable

Mot

FAL 33

Earrungs per Share

PAS 34

Interim Finzncial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
segment Information for Total Assets and Liahilities

Amendrment to PAS 34 Disclosure of information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PALS 36

Impairment of Assets |

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

FAS 37

Frovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assots

| Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -

Praportionate Restatement of Accumulzted
Amaortization

Amendment te PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
flethods of Depreciation and Amortization

Firancial Instruments: Recognition end Measurement

Amendments ta PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liakilitics

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragraup Transactans

Amendments to PAS 39° The Fair Value Option

Amendments ta PAS 32 Firancial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 Reclassification of Financial
AREELE

Amendments 1o PAS 3% Reclassification of Financial
Assels - Effective Dete and Transition

Amendments PAS 3% Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to PAS 39 Novetian ol Derivatives and

Amendment to PAS 29 Eligible Hedped ltems

Continuation of Hedge Accocunting

Pas 40

Investment Proporty




; [ Not Not |
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 40 Clerifying the Interrelztionship
between PTRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property v
as investment Property or Gwner-occupied Property
PAS 41 Apriculture v
| Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
Philippine Interpretations
. | [ i
; i Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
ERIEL (.“.hn.ngns.in Efﬂlf.ting Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Similar Liabilities
ERIES fembers' Share in Co-operative Entitios and Similar o
Instruments
] il b ] F aine
FRIC 2 Determining Whether ar &rrangement Contains a v
Lease
IFRIC S Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, o
Restaration and Ervironmental Rehabilitation Funos
Lizhilitias arising from Parlicipating in a Specific Market v
IFRIC & : ; i .
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equizment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 7
Financial Reparting in Hyperinflationary Economics
IFRIC 9 Reassessment af Embedded Derivatives d
| Amendments ta Philippine interpretation IFRIC=3: o |
Crnbedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financaal Reparting and Impairment v '
IFRIC 12 Service Cancession Arrangements W
IFRIC 13 Customer Layalty Programmes | v
PAS 19 - The Limit on & Defined Benefit Aszet,
IFRIC 14 : . : ik <
Mintmum Funding Reguirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, .
Prepayments of & Minimurm Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Fareign Operation v
tFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash &ssets to Owners ¥
IFRIC 18 Trarsfers of Assets from Customers ¥




| Interpretations ] Title Adoot dj Mot Mol l
N e OPYEE | adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 18 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity r

Insiruments f
IERIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 2 Surface i
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
i X
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - 5I1C
{I;lt-er retations Tit! i Ad “t d e ik
£ R PR Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Gmrernlmc!rut #f-.s.si.alan:c: = Mo specific Relation to v
Operating Activities
5IC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives v
Income T - Changes in th ; 'us of an Entity
€lc.25 : r:' aAKCE anges in the Tax Satus of an Entity v
or its Shareholders
. Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving the
Legal Form of a Lease
sic-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
.31 RE"\FE:T'IUE'- Barter Transactions Inveolving Advertising y i
Services

SiC-32

Intangible Assels - Web Site Costs




AG FINANCE INCORPORATED

(& subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp,)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Below is & schedule showing financial soundness indicators in 2016 and 2015,

2016 2014
Liquidity Ratio 107 4,55
Current asscts F2,603,939 2,340,362
Current habilities 2,431,005 513,945
Solvency Ratio 177 [1E.36}
Ineome (less) bafore income tax and
depreciation 5,124,939 18 406 B91)
Total habilities 2,895,359 513,945
Debt-to-equity Ratio 0.01 .00
Total liabilities 2,805,350 513,945
Total equily 333,896,162 329,236,077
Asset-to-equity Ratio 1,01 1.00
Total assots 336,791,521 329,750,022
Total equity 333,896,162 328,236,077
Interest rate coverage Ratio = ==
Pretax income hefore interest 5,124,439 59,597
Interest axpense L WP .
Profitability Ratio 0.01 (C.03)
Met income (loss) 4,660,085 [%,818, 794}

Total equity

333,806,162

325,236,077




AG FINANCE INCORPORATE

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp |

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY'S
RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings as shown i:H_IhE financiai
statements at beginning of year

Day-1-difference

Cumulztive balance of accretion of day-1-difference at
beginning of year

(RE,BES,173)
11,870,527

[6,640,454)

Unappropriated retzined earnings as adjusted to available far
dividend declaration at beginning of year
Met income actually earned during the year:
Net income during the year closed to retained 2arnings
Accretion of day-1-difference during the year
Add deforred tax liability during the year {prasented
thraugh profit or ioss)

(1,635,100)
4,660,085
(6,777,922
464,354 (1,653,483}

Total unappropriated retzined earnings available for dividend
declaration at end of year

{E3,288,583)

Reconciliation:

Armaunt

Unapproprizled retained earnings as shown in the financial
statements at end of year

Add deferred tax liablity during the year (presented through
profit ar joss)

Day-1-difierence

Cumulative balance of accretion of day-1-difference at end of
WEEr

(k2,205,088]

464,354
11,870,527

[13.418,‘3?6}

Tota! retained earnings availahle for dividend declaration

(R3,288 583

*exciudes amovnt preseated in othed cormprehensive incame,



_;-‘;_ chedule

AG FINANCE INCORPORATED
(A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

© SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR. 6 PART I
OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Table of Contents
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A
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Amaounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Lmployees, Releted
Parties, and Frincipzsl Stockholders {Other than Related Parties)
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Cuarantees of Securities of Other issvers
Capital Stock
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